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PROCEEDINGS

CHAIRMAN JABER: Good morning. We're going to go
ahead and get started this morning.

Counsel, read the notiée.

MR. HARRIS: Yes. Pursuant to notice issued February
the 21st, 2003, this time and place has been noticed for a
final hearing in Docket Number 030084-EI, Petition for
Determination of Need for Collier-Orange River 230kV
Transmission Line in Collier, Hendry, and Lee Counties by
Florida Power & Light Company.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, staff.

We are not going to take appearances right now. What
we need to do is announce that this meeting conflicted with
confirmation hearings for two of our Commissioners. So in that
regard what I'd 1ike to do is reconvene at 12:30 to give our
Commissioners time to be present for the hearing, and hope that
the parties take an opportunity to meet with staff and resolve
as many of the issues as possible as it relates to this
hearing.

So we will reconvene at 12:30. At that time we will
take appearances and preliminary matters and ultimately decide
what to do with this case. Thank you.

(Recess taken.)

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, we convened the

hearing at 9:30 this morning and reconvened until 12:30, so

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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let's get back on the record. Counsel, you've already read the
notice. Let's take appearances.

MR. HOFFMAN: Good afternoon, Madam Chairman. My
name is Kenneth A. Hoffman. I'm‘with the firm of Rutledge,
Ecenia, Purnell and Hoffman. With me is R. Wade Litchfield
with Florida Power & Light Company, and we are appearing on
behalf of Florida Power & Light Company.

MR. WRIGHT: Robert Scheffel Wright, Law Firm of
Landers & Parsons, 310 West College Avenue, Tallahassee,
appearing on behalf of Barron Collier Companies.

MR. HARRIS: Lawrence Harris and Cochran Keating on
behalf of the Commission.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. Mr. Harris, are there
preliminary matters? Are the mikes on, Mr. Staden? Okay.
Preliminary matters.

MR. HARRIS: Yes, Madam. The first is I believe
there's a proposed stipulation between Barron Collier Companies
and Florida Power & Light.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Hoffman, do you want to explain
that proposed stipulation?

MR. HOFFMAN: I will. Madam Chairman, yesterday FP&L
and Barron Collier Companies filed a stipulation that states
that under the Transmission Line Siting Act any party to the
certification hearing may, pursuant to Section 403.527(1),

Florida Statutes, propose an alternate corridor for the

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Collier-Orange River #3 project that includes Tocation of all
or a portion of the proposed project on the existing common
right-of-way. And the Siting Board has the authority to
determine that location of all of a portion of the
Collier-Orange River #3 project on the existing common
right-of-way has the least adverse impacts regarding the
criteria in Section 403.529(4), Florida Statutes.

The stipulation goes on to state that the final
determination of the most appropriate corridor route,
considering all of the factors and criteria specified in
Section 403.529, Florida Statutes, will be made by the Siting
Board pursuant to the Transmission Line Siting Act.

And -- I'm sorry, Madam Chairman. And we are asking
that the Commission approve that stipulation.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Wright, the copy of the

stipulation I have has your signature as well, so this is a

joint stipulation and there are no modifications to this.

MR. WRIGHT: Yes, Madam Chairman, that's correct.
And we also are asking you to approve the stipulation.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you.

Commissioners, do you have a copy of the proposed
stipulation or do you need one?

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I had one at my desk and I
failed to bring it down with me. But I'm -- well, if you have

Ian extra copy, Mr. Hoffman, that would be fine.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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8
CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, as Mr. Hoffman brings

up a copy, what I would 1ike to do is entertain questions you
may have from the stipulation or discussion on the stipulation.
But shortly thereafter I'm going‘to be asking for a motion on
the stipulation. So are there questions or a discussion?
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Madam Chairman, I don't really

“have a question. I guess -- it appears to me that what's

contained in the stipulation 1is, is straightforward and pretty
much irrefutable. Is that --
MR. HOFFMAN: That's how we view it, Commissioner.
MR. WRIGHT: As do we, Commissioner Deason.
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well.
CHAIRMAN JABER: Motion?
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: So moved.
" CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. There's been a motion to
accept the stipulation.
COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: And a second.
CHAIRMAN JABER: And a second. All those in favor,

say aye.
(Unanimous affirmative vote.)
CHAIRMAN JABER: The stipulation is unanimously
accepted.
Mr. Wright, thank you for your hard work.
MR. WRIGHT: Thank you very much, Madam Chairman.
CHAIRMAN JABER: And I know that there’'s a follow-up

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




WO 0~ Oy OB W N

N NN N N R e e R e B R
Ol B W NN P ©o W 00 N O O P& W N = o

preliminary matter.

Mr. Hoffman, thank you for your hard work.

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. wfight?

MR. WRIGHT: With your approval of the stipulation,
our notice of voluntary withdrawal becomes effective. Thank
y'all very much, and thanks to Mr. Hoffman.

COMMISSIONER JABER: And that's a notice of voluntary
withdrawal that was filed today?

MR. WRIGHT: That's correct, Madam Chairman.

CHAIRMAN JABER: For purposes of the record, we'll
acknowledge your withdrawal from the case. Thank you.

MR. WRIGHT: Yes, ma'am. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Staff, there are other preliminary
matters.

MR. HARRIS: Yes, Madam Chairman. There 1is an
outstanding request for confidential classification which
covers a substantial -- well, portions of the prefiled
testimony and the petition and the supporting Exhibit A filed
by Florida Power & Light on March 19th, 2003.

Staff would recommend that the Commission grant the
request for confidential classification as filed by FPL in this
docket. )

CHAIRMAN JABER: What was the date?

MR. HARRIS: It was filed on March 19th, 2003.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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10
CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. And staff's

recommendation is that the request be granted?

MR. HARRIS: That's correct.

CHAIRMAN JABER: For tHe record, the March 19th,
2003, request for confidential classification is granted.

Next.

MR. HARRIS: The next issue is I've had some
preliminary discussions with Fiorida Power & Light and they've
indicated a desire to move the body of their prefiled direct
testimony, the petition and the Exhibit A in support of that
into the record without the need for live witnesses.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Hoffman or Mr. Litchfield, why
don’'t we walk through your testimony and get that identified
and inserted into the record, and then we'll go through
exhibits.

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

Let me begin with a request that the Commission admit
the prefiled direct testimony of William Robert Schoneck.

CHAIRMAN JABER: The prefiled direct testimony of
William Robert Schoneck shall be inserted into the record as
though read.

MR. HAFF: And, Madam Chairman, just for the record,
I would note that on Page 20, Line 13 of that testimony we
simply wish to change the -- one, two, three -- sixth word on
that 1ine to "denial."” That should say "denial.”

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Would you point that out again
please? Line -- which 1ine is that?

MR. HOFFMAN: Line 13 of Page 20, Commissioner
Bradley. We had a typo there, aﬁd that should say "denial.”

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: O0Oh, okay. Thank you. It's a
misspelled word.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Yeah. The testimony was inserted
into the record with that correction.

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
DIRECT TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM ROBERT SCHONECK, JR.
DOCKET NO. 030084-EI

FEBRUARY 26, 2003

Please state your name and business address.
My name is William Robert Schoneck, Jr. My business address is 4200

West Flagler Street, Miami, Florida 33134.

By whom are you employed and what is your position?
1 am employed by Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL’") as the

Manager of Transmission Planning, Power Systems.

What are your responsibilities as Manager of Transmission Planning
in the Power Systems Business Unit?

My responsibilities include managing the group that is responsible for the
planning, coordination, and development of FPL’s transmission expansion
plan in order to meet FPL customers’ needs. 1have held this position and
had these responsibilities since October of 1993. Immediately prior to my

present position, I was Manager of Transmission Operations at FPL.

Please briefly describe your educational and professional background.
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I received a Bachelor of Science degree in Electric Engineering with
honors from the University of Florida in 1973 and a Master in Business
Administration degree from Floriaa International University in 1982. 1
have also attended seminars and short courses covering topics related to

transmission planning. I have been employed by FPL since 1973.

Do you hold any positions with regional or national organizations?

Yes. 1 currently participate on various committees of the Florida
Reliability Coordinating Council (“FRCC”). The FRCC is a voluntary
organization comprised of investor-owned utilities, municipal electric
utilities, rural electric cooperatives and other transmission users in Florida.
The FRCC coordinates and sets standards for the operation and planning
of the transmission system in Peninsular Florida. These standards are
consistent with and complementary to those of the North American

Electric Reliability Council (“NERC”).

Are you sponsoring any portion of the Petition?
Yes. I am sponsoring Exhibit “A” to FPL’s Petition for Determination of
Need for the Collier-Orange River #3 Project (“Project™) filed with this

Commission concurrently with my testimony on February 26, 2003.

Are you sponsofing any other exhibits?

Yes, I am sponsoring Exhibit No.___(WRS-1).
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Were these exhibits prepared by you or under your direction and
supervision?

Yes.

Please describe the purpose and scope of your testimony.

The purpose of my testimony is to sponsor and support FPL’s Petition for

a Determination of the Need for the Project. My testimony, as well as

Exhibit “A” to the Petition, present the following information in support

of the Project:

l. A general description of the existing load and electric
characteristics of FPL’s electrical transmission grid,

2. A general description of the Project including its design and
operating voltage, approximate range of costs, and projected in
service date,

3. The specific conditions, contingencies and factors which
demonstrate the need for the Project including a discussion of
FPL’s transmission planning process and the reliability benefits of
the Project,

4. The major alternatives to the Project that were evaluated and
rejected by FPL in favor of the Project, and

5. The adverse consequences to FPL’s electric system and customers
if the Projéct is delayed or denied.

Describe the organization of your testimony.
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A.

I will first provide an overview of FPL and the existing load
characteristics and composition of FPL’s transmission network. Second, I
will describe the Project, the neéd for and benefits associated with the
Project, and the estimated capital cost of the Project. Third, I will explain
FPL’s transmission planning process. Fourth, I will discuss the evaluation
and analyses conducted to demonstrate the need for and benefits of the
Project. Fifth, T will discuss the alternatives considered and explain why
they were rejected in favor of the Project. Finally, I will address the
adverse consequences to FPL’s customers if the Project is denied or not

timely approved.

How does your testimony relate to the testimony of Mr. Mennes?

My testimony will demonstrate the need for the Project. Mr. Mennes will
further emphasize the need to locate the Project in a separate ROW to
continue to provide reliable service to FPL’s customers in the area south

of Fort Myers, including the Naples load center.

OVERVIEW OF FPL

Please provide a brief description of FPL.

FPL provides electric service to more than 4 million customers in 35
Florida counties. In approximate terms, FPL's service territory includes
the cast coast of Florida beginning in Miami-Dade County in southeast

Florida and running north to Nassau County in northeast Florida, as well
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as a large portion of southwest Florida beginning in Collier County and
running north through Manatee County.

Please describe FPL’s existing load characteristics and the
composition of FPL’s transmission network.

FPL’s existing load characteristics consist primarily of residential and
commercial load with limited commercial/industrial load. A listing of
FPL’s forecasted peak load is provided in Attachment 2 of the Petition.
FPL’s actual summer peak load in 2002 was 19,219MW and the actual

winter peak load in 2002-2003 was 20,190MW.

An overview of FPL’s existing electrical transmission system is provided
in Attachments la and 1b to the Petition. The area south of Fort Myers is
bounded on the north by the Fort Myers Plant and the Orange River
Substation, on the west by the Gulf of Mexico and on the east by the
county lines of Collier and Lee. This area is referred to as the “Project
Service Area.” As shown in Attachment 1b, there are many transmission
lines situated on an existing common ROW that deliver power from the
Orange River Substation into the area south of Fort Myers, including the
Naples load center. Two of the three 230kV lines on the existing common
ROW run from the Orange River Substation all the way south to the
Collier Substation. The Project would provide a third 230kV line from the

Orange River Substation to the Collier Substation.
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DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

Q.

Please describe the transmission line for which FPL is seeking a
determination of need in this doéket.

The Project consists of a transmission line connecting FPL’s Collier and
Orange River Substations. The proposed transmission line will be
constructed with a single pole design in a new ROW, and will have a
design and operating voltage of 230kV. Attachment 4 is a map showing
the electrical facilities in the Project Service Area that currently exist (in
black), a conceptual electrical connection for the Project (in blue), and
other planned facilities in the general area (in red). The locations on the
map of facilities not yet in service arc approximate. In particular, the line
depicting the Project is intended to indicate conceptually an electrical
connection from the Orange River Substation to the Collier Substation
strictly from an engineering and planning perspective, without regard to
specific environmental and other considerations that will affect the actual
siting of the Project. The final length and routing of the line will depend
on the result of further proceedings under the Transmission Line Siting
Act (“TLSA”) and the decision of the Governor and Cabinet, sitting as the

Siting Board.

What is FPL’s timetable for licensing, design and construction of the

Project?

017
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FPL presently is evaluating corridors in anticipation of submitting an
application under the TLSA in the spring of 2003. The final action by the
Siting Board is expected in the épring of 2004. Detailed design of the
Project will begin as soon as a final corridor is approved. Construction is
expected to begin in the fourth quarter of 2004 and to be completed by

December 2005.

Please summarize the need for and benefits associated with the

Project.

The need for the Project is driven by two primary considerations:

1. The need to serve the forecasted load growth in the Project Service
Area in a reliable manner consistent with NERC Transmission

System Standards.

o

The need for another electrical feed via a separate ROW path into
the Project Service Area to reduce the impact of a loss of the

transmission facilities in the existing common ROW.

In addition, the Project will provide additional benefits. To the extent the
Project is located in a separate ROW east of the existing common ROW
that serves the Project Service Area, it could facilitate future long-range
transmission expansion within the next 10 to 15 years to meet the expected
load growth. I’urther, a new, geographically diverse ROW could

minimize the need for additional ROW for future additional transmission
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facilities, and also would allow for more efficient maintenance of the
transmission facilities while mitigating the risk of an impact on reliability.
Finally, placement of potential fuiure long-range transmission expansion
facilities on the new ROW would better distribute transmission capacity

and further strengthen the reliability to FPL's customers.

What is FPL’s estimated capital cost of the Project?

The final route has not been selected and final costs will be subject to a
number of factors including the determination of the final length and route
of the line as determined under the TLSA. Specifically, the length and
route of the line, and other conditions that could be imposed through the
TLSA process, will affect land acquisition costs, line construction costs,
environmental permitting and mitigation costs, ROW preparation costs,
and other compliance costs. The estimated capital cost of the Project,
based on potential routes, is between $23 million and $41 million in 2003
dollars. The corresponding range of present value revenue requirements 1s
between $32 million and $57 million in 2003 dollars. This range of costs

is the best available estimate at this time.

FPL’S PLANNING PROCESS

Please describe FPL’s transmission planning criteria.
FPL plans its transmission system in accordance with the NERC

Transmission System Standards. As described in more detail in

019



16

17

18

19

Attachment 5a of the Petition, NERC Transmission System Standards are
divided into categories A, B, C, and D. Category A describes normal
system conditions (all facilities in ‘service). Category B describes the loss
of a single facility, also known as a single contingency event. Category C
describes the loss of two or more facilities. Category D describes outages
due to an extreme event. Generally each category addresses the
performance measures and standards of the system under different

scenarios and circumstances.

Please describe FPL’s transmission planning process.

FPIL. conducts transmission studies each year to identify future
transmission improvements needed to maintain acceptable transmission
reliability. As further detailed in Section III and Attachment 5b of the
Petition, the process essentially consists of three major steps: (1) the
preparation of system models; (2) the assessment of the transmission
system (i.c., does the system's performance comply with the four
categories in the NERC Transmission System Standards); and (3) the
development and evaluation of alternatives, and selection of the preferred

project(s).

What analyses did FPL perform in determining the need for the

Project?
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In determining the need for the Project, FPL performed studies that
revealed limitations on the existing 230kV and [38kV transmission
network in the Project Service A;rea. In addition, FPL assessed ROW
diversity. This assessment quantifies and compares the impact on
customer outages of building the project on the existing ROW versus
building the project on a separate ROW. Section IV of the Petition

provides a more detailed description of this assessment.

NEED FOR THE PROJECT

Q.

Please describe the existing and projected load in the Project Service
Area.

The Project Service Area has become a major load center. As of January
2003, FPL provided service to approximately 357,700 customers which
equates to a population of approximately 594,900. These figures are
expected to grow at a rate of approximately 11,300 new customers
(approximately 18,800 people) per year. The growth rate for the Project
Service Area represents an incremental load of approximately 68MW per
year. FPL’s 2002/2003 winter peak load occurred on January 24, 2003.
On that date, the load in the Project Service Area, which includes the loads
of both FPL and Lee County Electric Cooperative, was 2,156MW.
Presently. the forecasted load of the Project Service Area for the winter
peak of 2005/2006 is 2,352MW and the forecasted load for the 2006

summer peak is 1,980MW. The load served by the existing transmission

10
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facilities has reached the point where additional transmission capability is
needed to maintain reliable electric service. The Project fulfills this need

in the most reliable and effective manner.

Please summarize the need for the Project.

The Project is needed to maintain the reliability of service and strengthen
the reliability of the bulk transmission system in the Project Service Area.
Based on the forecasted winter peak load for 2005/2006 and the forecasted
summer peak load for 2006, the increase in load will result in the capacity
of the existing transmission system out of the Orange River Substation
into the Collier Substation to be exceeded under single contingency
events, which, if not mitigated, would be non-compliant with NERC
Transmission System Standards. The implementation of the Project will
mitigate the single contingency overloads and low voltages that would
occur without the Project. The Project also provides an important diverse
path for electrical power to flow into the Project Service Area. This new
path for power to flow on a geographically diverse ROW will significantly
reduce the number of customers who would lose power and enhance the
restoration of service to customers in the event of a loss of transmission

facilities in a common ROW,

Please describe the contingencies that require the addition of the

Project.

11
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As outlined in Exhibit “A” of the Petition, we analyzed load flows for the
year 2005/2006 winter peak load without any new transmission facilities
in service. As referenced on Tlable 1 in Exhibit “A,” these analyses
indicate that for a single contingency event of any one of six 230kV
transmission line sections within the common ROW in the Project Service
Area could cause an outage for up to approximately 104,200 customers
which equates to approximately 173,200 people. In addition, our analysis
shows that overloads ranging from 102% to as high as 124% of the
thermal MVA facility rating would occur under eleven separate
contingencies. The NERC standards require that the facility ratings not
exceed 100% of the applicable facility rating. The overloads would
require the interruption of service of 7,200 to 41,100 customers
(approximately 12,000 to 68,300 people), depending on the specific
outage, in order to continue to operate the facilities in accordance with

NERC Transmission System Standards.

How would construction of the Project resolve these contingencies?

The Project provides an additional 230kV injection into FPL’s Collier
Substation. The construction of the Project, based on a projected in-
service date of December 2005, would mitigate the thermal overloads and
low voltage conditions caused by single contingency events in accordance

with NERC Transmission System Standards and would provide reliable

12
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service to existing and new customers as the load in the Project Service

Area continues to grow.

Why has FPL proposed that the Project be constructed on a separate
ROW?

This essential component of the Project is described more fully by Mr.
Mennes in his direct testimony. As part of the planning process, FPL
evaluates contingencies known as Category D events which I have
previously described. In this case, most of the existing transmission
facilities, including all of the existing 230kV transmission facilities used
to serve the Project Service Area, are located on a common ROW between
the Orange River and Collier Substations. In other words, the Project
Service Area could be currently described as an electrical peninsula as
shown in Exhibit No.__ (WRS-1). This clectrical peninsula receives
power through several transmission lines that are subject to a collective
outage arising through such events as a plane crash or tornado. Placing
the new circuit in a separate ROW would provide the transmission system
serving the Project Service Area with a diverse path for the transmission

of power.

Did FPL determine the impact of the loss of the transmission facilities

on the existing common ROW in the Project Service Area?

13

024



10

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

=

~

o
(=
o
=
=
e}
=
»
¢}
~
<
L
O
o
o
=
=
<
a3
—
=
o
—
=
—
‘<
—-
e}
e’
=
w
-
]
=
o
-
w
5
-
=
¢}
~y
L
[}
(@}
pEA
€]
[¢]
=
<
ot
[@)
[¢’]
>
-
¢
£

k4

could be rotated. By having the ability to rotate service unavailability to
customers within the Project Service Area, the majority of the customers
would be without power for lesser periods of time until repairs are

performed.
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What conclusions have you reached regarding the need for a separate
ROW?
In my opinion, the construction of ‘the Project on a separate ROW provides
substantial reliability benefits and enhances the restoration of service to
customers. It will serve to substantially reduce the number of customers
that would lose power in the event a catastrophic event impairs the lines
situated in the common ROW that serve the substantial (and rapidly
growing) population in the Project Service Area. Moreover, the length of
time a particular customer would be without power could be lessened
since service unavailability could be rotated among some of the customers

in the Project Service Area.

Are there other reliability and strategic benefits associated with the
Project?

Yes, there are three primary additional benefits. First, the reliability risks
associated with maintaining transmission facilities will be reduced.
Maintenance of one transmission line could require that other transmission
lines on a common ROW also be taken out of service to facilitate
maintenance. Therefore, placement of the Project on a separate ROW
would lessen the reliability impact of multiple transmission facilities being
unavailable during maintenance periods, thereby lowering the possibility

of customer outages during such periods.
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Second, current load projections indicate that the load in the Project
Service Area is expected to continue to grow, with substantial growth to
the east of the existing transmission facilities in the common ROW. To
serve this new load, it will be necessary to site new distribution
substations to the east of the existing transmission lines. As depicted in
Attachment 4 of Exhibit “A,” several of these substations have been
planned and others are under consideration. Transmission facilities will
need to be rerouted and/or constructed in the future to the east of the
existing common ROW in order to serve these substations. The
establishment of a new ROW east of the existing common ROW provides
an opportunity, subject to final ROW siting under the TLSA, for the more
efficient and cost-effective integration of these new substations into FPL’s
transmission system to meet the expected load growth of the Project

Service Area.

Finally, FPL’s load forecast for the Project Service Area indicates that the
load will grow at an average rate of 3% per year for the next nine years.
Developing a new ROW that may be able to accommodate another future
transmission line when this need materializes will facilitate the long-range
needs of the Project Service Area by providing opportunities for expansion
of the transmission system with continued diversity of transmission

routing.

16
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DISCUSSION OF ALTERNATIVES

Did FPL examine any alternatives to the Project?

1

Yes.

What factors were employed to evaluate the alternatives?
The factors used to evaluate the performance of the alternatives included
reliability, cost, construction feasibility, operational flexibility, ROW

diversity, and compatibility with future transmission system expansion.

Please summarize those alternatives and explain why they were
rejected in favor of the Project.

FPL identified transmission improvements, as well as a generation
alternative, that presented the potential to meet the load growth and
reliability needs of the Project Service Area. Each of the alternatives that 1
will discuss below were found to be inferior to the Project when

considered in light of the factors that I previously mentioned.

(1) Placement of Collier-Orange River 230kV #3 Project on Existing

Common ROW -- This alternative would provide a 230kV transmission

line into FPL’s Collier Substation from the Orange River Substation using
the existing common ROW that already contains numerous transmission
lines. This alternative provides adequate voltage support and relieves

single contingency thermal overloads. The estimated capital cost of this

17
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alternative is projected to be $17 million in 2003 dollars. The

corresponding present value of revenue requirements is $25 million in

4

2003 dollars.

However, this alternative has several major drawbacks. First, it does not
provide the reliability and service restoration benefits that, as I have
previously discussed, are important for this major load center. Second, this
alternative does not provide an opportunity for future expansion of FPL’s
transmission system to integrate and serve new distribution substations as
the load increases in the eastern portion of the Project Service Area.

Finally, this alternative would not address maintenance efficiency.

(2) Orange River-Collier 500kV Transmission Line - - Under this

alternative, FPL would build a 500kV transmission injection into the
Collier/Naples area. This project would require a new transmission ROW
extending from a point along the existing Andytown-Orange River 500kV
transmission line to a substation in the Collier area (approximately 25 to
30 miles). The substation in the Collier arca would require the installation
of 500kV to 230kV transformation equipment, along with the routing of
two of the existing Collier-Orange River 230kV transmission lines into the
new substation. The estimated capital cost of this alternative is projected
to be $99 million in 2003 dollars. The corresponding present value

revenue requirements is $138 million in 2003 dollars. This alternative was

18
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rejected due to the high cost, the inability to facilitate expansion of the
transmission system to serve future distribution substations, and the
increased likelihood of being unable to meet the necessary in service date
of December 2005 due to the potential for increased permitting and

construction schedules.

(3) Alico-Orange River 230kV Transmission Line - - This alternative

would introduce an additional 230kV transmission line from the Orange
River Substation to the Alico Substation. This alternative does not fully
comply with NERC Transmission System Standards because it would not
relieve all of the thermal overloads and low voltages for two
contingencies. Also, the voltage support for the Project Service Area
would not be adequate for the more severe 230kV contingencies.

Therefore, this is alternative was rejected.

(4) Ft. Myers-Collier 138kV Transmission Line - - Under this alternative,

FPL would construct an additional 138kV transmission line from FPL’s
Fort Myers Plant into FPL’s Collier Substation. Like the Alico-Orange
River alternative, this alternative does not comply with NERC
Transmission System Standards. This alternative relieves only some
minor single contingency thermal overloads and would not eliminate the
more severe 230kV transmission overloads resulting from a single

contingency events. Because this alternative will not relieve the thermal
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overloads and low voltages from a single contingency, customer
interruptions may be necessary until the out-of-service (ransmission
facilities can be repaired. Also, the voltage support in the Project Service

Area would not be adequate for the more severe 230kV contingencies.

Therefore, this alternative was rejected.

(5) Siting Generation near the Naples load center - - FPL also considered

the alternative of siting new generation (2 combustion turbines) near the
Naples load center (e.g., Collier Substation). The estimated capital cost
(net present value) of this alternative is $101 million in 2003 dollars.

Therefore, this alternative was rejected.

DENIAL

ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES OF DELAY OR DB¥dwed: OF THE

PROJECT

Q. Would there be adverse consequences to FPL’s customers in the Project

Service Area if the Project is not timely approved?

Yes. If the Project is not timely approved and no other alternative is built,
inadequate transmission capability would result, thereby jeopardizing
reliable service to existing and future customers 1in this area as discussed in
Section IV of the Petition. Furthermore, the proposed Collier-Orange River
#3 transmission line should be constructed on a new ROW in order to

provide diversity of transmission capacity for the Project Service Area.

20

031



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

What would be the impact if certification of the Project were denied?
If certification of the Project were denied, FPL would be required to address

its customers’ needs with a less reliable alternative and one that is not in the

best long term interest of FPL’s customers.

Please summarize your testimony.

The Project is needed by December 2005 to maintain the reliability of power
supply into the Project Service Area. The other alternatives to address this
situation are either too costly, do not provide the reliability needed, are not
viable, or do not provide for the operation of the facilities within the rated
thermal and voltage limits in the event of a single contingency consistent

with NERC Transmission System Standards.

In summary, the Project provides the following benefits: (i) provides the
additional transmission capacity necessary to correct thermal overloads and
low voltage conditions in accordance with NERC Transmission System
Standards; (ii) increases the recliability of electric service in the Project
Service Area by providing an alternative path to the Collier Substation
resulting in diversity of transmission routing; (ii1) provides an opportunity to
accommodate the efficient integration and service to new distribution
substations identified to serve projected load growth from existing and new

customers in the Project Service Area in a reliable manner; and (iv)

21
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facilitates and provides flexibility for the maintenance of existing
transmission facilities located in the common ROW.

Should the Commission approve the need for the Project?

Yes. The Commission should determine that there is a need for a 230kV
transmission line connecting the Collier and Orange River Substations.
Moreover, the Commission should recognize that there will be significant
reliability and other benefits to the Project Service Area if the Project is

located in a new, geographically-diverse ROW from the existing common

ROW,

Does this conclude your direct testimony?

Yes, it does.
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MR. HOFFMAN: Moving to the prefiled direct testimony

of Vicente Ordax, Jr., which consists of four pages. We have
no changes or revisions to that testimony, and we would ask
that Mr. Ordax's prefiled direct testimony be inserted in the

record as though read.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
DIRECT TESTIMONY OF
VICENTE ORDAX, JR.
DOCKET NO. 030084-E1

FEBRUARY 26, 2003

Please state your name and business address.
My name is Vicente Ordax, Jr. My business address is 4200 West Flagler

Street, Miami, Florida 33134.

By whom are you employed and what is your position?
I am employed by Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL™) as Supervisor

of Local Area Planning.

What are your responsibilities as Supervisor of Local Area Planning?
My responsibilities include the development and evaluation of
transmission expansion plans utilizing load flow analysis. I have held this

position and performed these responsibilities since September of 2001.

Please briefly describe your educational and professional background.
I graduated with honors from the University of Florida with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Electrical Engineering in August of 1986. I received a

1



10

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

036

Master of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from Florida
International University in August of 1990. I am a registered professional
engineer in the state of Florida. I have also attended seminars and short

courses covering topics related to transmission planning.

I have been employed by FPL since August of 1986 and have held several
positions. Since 1991, my responsibilities in the Transmission Operation
and Transmission Planning areas have included performing engineering
work for FPL. In that capacity | have attained a high level of expertise in
the performance of transmission load flow studies and other specialty
studies. I have also represented FPL as a member of the Transmission
Working Group of the Florida Reliability Coordinating Council

responsible for performing the seasonal transmission assessments.

Are you sponsoring any portion of the Petition?

Yes. I am co-sponsoring the load flow diagrams (Appendices A & B) and
the Load Flow Project Summary Table (Attachment 8) included in Exhibit
“A” to FPL’s Petition for Determination of Need for the Collier-Orange
River #3 Project (“Project™) filed with this Commission on February 26,

2003.

What is the purﬁose of your testimony?
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The purpose of my testimony is to sponsor the results of the load flow
studies reflected in the load flow diagrams included in Exhibit “A” to

FPL’s Petition which demonstrate the need for the Project.

Were the load flow studies and resulting load flow diagrams
prepared under your direct supervision and control?

Yes.

Are the load flow analyses and corresponding diagrams presented in
the Petition consistent with generally accepted engineering practices
and transmission planning criteria?

Yes, they are.

What are load flow diagrams and how are they used in utility
transmission planning?

Load flow diagrams show the electrical configuration of a transmission
system. They are used to identify transmission facilities and the loading

on those facilites for the specific condition being evalutated.

Why were the load flow diagrams prepared?

The load flow diagrams were prepared to show graphically the results of
the load flow studies which demonstrate and support the need for the
Project. The load flow studies and corresponding diagrams evaluated the

3
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transmission system performance during winter and summer peak load
conditions under single contingency events. The results of the studies for
the Project are summarized in Attachment 8 to the Petition and discussed

by Mr. Schoneck in his direct testimony.

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes, it does.
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CHAIRMAN JABER: The prefiled direct testimony of

Vincente Ordax, Jr., shall be inserted into the record as
though read.

MR. HOFFMAN: And then‘fina11y, Madam Chairman, we,
we have both prefiled direct and rebuttal testimony of
C. Martin Mennes. And in connection with the prefiled direct
testimony of Mr. Mennes, we have a correction on Page 6, Line
4. The word "cost" should be "coast,” C-0-A-S-T.

CHAIRMAN JABER: We don't get to put Mr. Mennes on
the stand?

MR. HOFFMAN: Perhaps not, Madam Chairman, if you
accept our stipulation.

And with that change, we would ask that Mr. Mennes’
prefiled direct testimony be inserted into the record as though
read.

CHAIRMAN JABER: The prefiled direct testimony of
C. Martin Mennes shall be inserted into the record as though
read with the correction to Page 6, Line 4.

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
DIRECT TESTIMONY OF C. MARTIN MENNES
DOCKET NO. 030084-EI

FEBRUARY 26, 2003

Please state your name and business address.
My name is C. Martin Mennes. My business address is 4200 West Flagler St.,

Miami, Florida 33134.

By whom are you employed and what is your position?
I am employed by Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL”) as Vice

President, Transmission Operations and Planning.

Please describe your duties and responsibilities as Vice President,
Transmission Operations and Planning.

I am responsible for FPL's bulk and regional transmission planning and
transmissions system operations.  This includes responsibility for the
reliability and security of the FPL transmission system. In this regard, I have
overall responsibility for the formulation of transmission expansion plans such
as the project for which a determination of need is being sought from this

Commission.

-
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Please describe your educational background, business experience, and

professional associations. .

I graduated with honors from the University of Florida in 1968 with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering. 1 earned a Post-
Graduate Certificate of Proficiency in Electrical Engineering from the
University of Miami in 1974, and completed the Program for Management
Development from the Harvard University Graduate School of Business in
1981. T am a registered Professional Engineer in the State of Florida. I began
working at FPL in 1968 in the area of protective relay and control systems.
Since then I have held the positions of Manager of System Protection,
Manager of System Operations, Manager of Bulk Power Markets, and
Director of Power Supply. In February 2000 I assumed my present position.
My industry-related activities include serving as the chair of the following
organizations:  North American Electric Reliability Council ("NERC")
Performance Subcommittee, NERC Security Coordinator Subcommittee,
Southeastern Electric Reliability Council ("SERC") Operating Committee,
and the Florida Regional Coordinating Council (*FRCC”) Operating
Committee. In addition, [ am presently serving as vice chair for the NERC
Market Interface Committee, and I am on the NERC Technical Steering
Committee. 1 also- have worked on numerous NERC committees and
taskforces including the Transmission Transfer Capability Taskforce, and the

Electronic Information Network Taskforce.

R
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What is the purpose of your testimony in this proceeding?

The purpose of my testimony is to support FPL's Petition for a Determination
of Need for the Project as identified and described in FPL's Petition.
Specifically, T explain the importance of establishing a new 230kV
transmission line into the Naples load center in a new, separate right-of-way

(“ROW™).

Are you sponsoring any portion of the Petition?
Yes, I am jointly sponsoring Attachment 6 of Exhibit A" to the Petition with

Mr. Schoneck.

Please describe the area that will be served by the Project and the existing
transmission facilities that provide electric service into this area.

The “Project Service Area,” as shown on Attachment |b, includes the area
south of Fort Myers bounded on the north by the Fort Myers Plant and Orange
River Substation, on the west by the Gulf of Mexico, and on the east by the
county lines of Collier and Lee. The Project Service Area currently can be
described as an electrical peninsula. As of January 2003, FPL served
approximately 357,700 customers (an approximate population of 594,900) in
the Project Service Area. This area is considered a major load center and the
load is projected to continue to grow at a rate of approximately 11,300

customers or 68MW per year.
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Please summarize why a separate ROW is needed.

A scparate ROW is needed to mitigate the adverse consequences resulting
from the loss of all transmission facilities in the existing, common ROW,
Loss of all transmission facilities in a common ROW means that all the
transmission lines within the ROW have been de-energized due to an event
causing damage to the lines or structures within the ROW such as plane

crashes, severe weather such as tornadoes, or fires.

_To mitigate the consequences of losing all the

transmission facilities in the common ROW, FPL is proposing to construct the

additional transmission feed in a geographically diverse ROW.
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Has the Company lost all transmission facilities in a common ROW in the
past? \

Yes, although an infrequent occurrence, FPL has lost all transmission facilities
in a common ROW. In 1985, wildfires in the east coast 500kV ROW resulted
in three 500KV circuits coming out of service. On August 27, 1998, a plane
crash took out of service two 500kV circuits located on a common ROW
north of Duval Substation in Duval County. On November 14, 1998, another
plane crash took out of service two 115kV circuits located on a common
ROW out of FPL’s Volusia Substation in Volusia County. On April 17, 1999
a fire in the 500kV ROW north of Andytown Substation took out of service
multiple combinations of 500kV circuits at different times during the day. On
February 16, 2001, a fire south of SR 60 in Indian River County took out of
service two 500kV circuits located in a common ROW. Recently on February
9, 2003, a single engine airplane clipped and damaged one transmission line
and narrowly missed the four other lines located in a common ROW east of

FPL’s Andytown Substation in Broward County.

What were the consequences of losing the transmission facilities in
common ROWs noted above?

The incidents noted above resulted in a loss of the transmission facilities in
question for periods- of up to seventeen hours and involved significant
operational and restoration challenges. For example, during the 17 hour repair

of the two 500kV Duval circuits in the August 1998 event, it was necessary to
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activate FPL's On Call Program statewide outside of normal On Call Program
hours in order to maintain system security. It became necessary to cycle off
air conditioners, pool pumps, and water heaters for prolonged periods of time.
ceast
The 1985 occurrence affecting the east eest S00kV common ROW resulied in
a blackout of all of south Florida, interrupting service to roughly 1.5 million
customers for periods up to three hours. Subsequent to this event, an
additional 500kV line was placed into service on a geographically separate
ROW to mitigate the adverse consequences associated with a future loss of all
transmission facilities on the original 500kV ROW. The benefit of the new
diverse 500kV ROW was evidenced on April 17, 1999 when fires again de-
energized all of the lines on the original 500kV ROW. This time, the system

remained intact and no customers were affected. FPL seeks to build the

Collier-Orange River #3 Project in a separate ROW to meet a similar need.

What would be the consequences of losing the existing transmission ROW
between the Orange River and Collier Substations?
The consequences of losing the existing transmission ROW between the

Orange River and Collier Substations would be quite severe. | NN RN
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Are these consequences acceptable?

No. TIdo not believe that these are acceptable consequences. Because such a
large and growing load center receives most of its electric service through a
single ROW, the loss of all facilities in a common ROW, even though an
infrequent occurrence, could result in severe consequences for the residential,
commercial, and industrial customers in the Project Service Area. Simply
stated, there are too many customers in the Project Service Area that currently
rely upon transmission capability located within a common ROW to meet all
of their electric service needs. In my opinion, such consequences should be
mitigated to the extent reasonably practicable. FPL's customers expect
reliable, cost effective electric service. Currently, the most reasonable and
practicable means available to mitigate the impact of the loss of all
transmission facilities in the existing common ROW is to install a new

transmission feed into the Project Service Area in a new geographically

diverse ROW.

Please describe how such consequences could be mitigated by locating the
new circuit in a separate ROW,
With the addition of the new transmission circuit in a separate ROW, the

consequences of losing a common transmission ROW due to severe weather

or another major event are significantly reduced. ||| GcGcNGTSEE
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I [ kcwisc, restoration efforts would be

significantly enhanced if the new circuit were to occupy a separate ROW. Not
only would fewer customers experience an extended outage, but the
availability of an additional feed into the Project Service Area would enable
FPL to continue to provide service on a rotating basis to customers, thus
significantly reducing the amount of time customers would be without service
while restoration efforts are completed. Moreover, restoration efforts would

be accelerated because the new circuit would not have been damaged.

As discussed in the Petition, most load centers are capable of being served
from different sources via transmission facilities. However, this is not the
case in the Project Service Area because there are no other major sources of
power available in this area. Further, as Mr. Schoneck testifies, there is no
generation alternative that could cost-effectively avoid the need for a new,
geographically diverse transmission feed in this area. Placing the new line in
the existing common ROW, while providing additional required (ransmission
capacity into the area, would not provide the critical diversity benefits

provided by a separate ROW into the Project Service Area.
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Has the risk of losing transmission facilities in a common ROW increased
since the events of September 11, 2001?

While it is impossible to quantify the precise increase in the level of risk
presented by possible terrorist activities in the post-September 11 world, 1
don’t believe anyone would dispute the fact that risks of this nature have
increased. Constructing the new transmission feed into the Project Service
Area on a ROW separate from the existing transmission ROW, in my view, is
a reasonable and appropriate measure to take to mitigate the consequences of

an act of sabotage to transmission facilities in the existing common ROW.

Should the Commission approve the need for the Project?
Yes, the Commission should determine that the Project is needed and provides
significant reliability benefits to the Project Service Area by locating the

Collier-Orange River #3 transmission line in a geographically diverse ROW.

Does this conclude your direct testimony?

Yes, it does.
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MR. HOFFMAN: And finally we have the prefiled

rebuttal testimony of Mr. Mennes, which consists of five pages.
We have no changes or revisions, and we would ask that
Mr. Mennes' prefiled rebuttal teétimony be inserted into the
record as though read.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Well, which is it: C. Martin Mennes
or Martin C. Mennes?

The prefiled rebuttal testimony of Martin Mennes
shall be inserted into the record as though read.

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OFIC. MARTIN MENNES
DOCKET NO. 030084-EI

March 31, 2003

Please state your name and business address.

My name is C. Martin Mennes. My business address is 4200 West Flagler St.,

Miami, Florida 33134.

Are you the same C. Martin Mennes who previously filed direct testimony
in this case?

Yes, I am.

What is the purpose of your rebuttal testimony?
The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to respond to the testimony submitted

by Michel P. Armand, P.E. on behalf of Barron Collier Companies.

Please respond to Mr. Armand’s statements concerning the fact that a
new 230kV transmission line into the Project Service Area was not
identified in FPL’s previous Ten-Year Site Plans.

A new 230kV transn-a.ission line was not listed in FPL’s Ten-Year Site Plan

prior to this year’s Plan because such a line was not identified as the preferred
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;olutior; to miﬁ gate certain overloads and voltage concerns in southwest

Florida area until after April 2002 when FPL’s last Ten-Year Site Plan was

submitted. Prior to concluding that a new line was needed, FPL had been

meeting the transmission needs of a growing population in the Project Service

Area (as defined in FPL’s Petition) through performing various upgrades and

improvements to the existing transmission system. These upgrades and

improvements have included:

1 Addition of transmission capacitor banks at Collier and Alico
substations in 12/2000 and at Imperial Substation in 1/2002

X Upgrade of the Alico-Metro 138kV line section in 1/2000

¢ Upgrade of the Buckingham-Ft. Myers 138kV line in 6/2001

* Upgrade of the Ft. Myers-Winkler 138kV line section in 12/2002

* Construction of an alle';nate feed (Alico-Estero 138kV) to relieve the
Alico-Collier 138k<’ #1 line in 12/2000

. Construction of an alternate feed (Collier-Naples 138kV) to relieve the
Alico-Collier 138KV #2 line in 6/2001

These types of improvements typically are less costly than adding a major

230KV line and, therefore, were pursued first. In the summer of 2002, FPL

concluded that it could no longer adequately address the growing overload

and voltage concerns through the above-mentioned types of solutions and

dééermined that it was necessary to add a new 230kV line from the Orange

River Substation to the Collier Substation (as discussed in section IV part A.1
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of Exhibit “A”). FPL made its final decision to construct the line in the fall of
2002. The line is identified in FPL’s 2003 Ten-Year Site Plan.

Please describe FPL’s transmission planning cycle and explain why the
need for the line was not identified earlier.

FPL begins its transmission planning process by updating information on load,
sited generation, and transmission data from the prior year (e.g., new
transmission facilities and distribution stations). This occurs between January
and April of each year. Based on these inputs to the transmission planning
model, a transmission assessment is performed. This occurs during the
months of May through July. The location of generation is critical and a
major factor in the assessment and determination of transmission needs.
Thus, because all generation may not have been identified in the Ten-Year Site
Plan as sited, a reasonable transmission plan and planning horizon are limited
by the known generation data. In recent years, the transmission assessment
has looked forward through appropriate summer and winter peak periods
occurring four to five years out. As Mr. Schoneck discussed in his direct
testimony, during its 2002 assessment FPL identified the need for a new

230kV transmission line into the Project Service Area based on the winter

peak in 2005/2006.

Is Mr. Armand correct in his conclusion that FPL has adopted no loss of

load due to the loss of facilities in a common corridor as a new planning
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criterion?

No, his conclusion is incorrect. FPL has adopted no such criterion. As
reflected in the NERC Transmission S:ystems Standards, included on pp. 3-4
in attachment 5a of Exhibit “A” to FPL’s Petition, controlled loss of load is
acceptable in extreme events that result in the loss of multiple facilities
(NERC Category D event). As the NERC standard for a Category D event
states, the “mitigation or elimination of the risks and consequences of these
events shall be at the discretion of the entities responsible for the reliability of
the interconnected transmission systems.” FPL believes that placement of the
new 230kV transmission line in a separate ROW is necessary to appropriately
mitigate the potentially severe consequences associated with the loss of all
transmission facilities in the existing common ROW. FPL’s position in this
respect should be clear from the petition and from the direct testimony filed
by Mr. Schoneck and myself. See, for example, Mr. Schoneck’s direct
testimony at page 15 and my direct testimony at pages 7 and 8.

Mr. Armand suggests that other parts of the FPL bulk power supply
system are more vulnerable to sabotage and other risks than co-located
transmission lines. Please respond.

I do not believe any appropriate purpose would be served in commenting
specifically on this assertion. 1 would note simply that FPL has addressed and
continues to address security risks throughout its bulk power supply system.

The need for the Project is based on the unique characteristics of the Project

Service Area and the bulk power system that serves this area. FPL has
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identified a need for a new 230kV line into the Project Service Area and has
determined that, given the peninsula-like characteristics of the transmission
system in this area, the interests of FPL's customers are best served by placing

the new transmission line in a new ROW geographically diverse from the

existing ROW.

Mr. Armand contends that the risk presented by locating the new 230kV
transmission circuit in the existing common ROW does not justify the
incremental cost of FPL’s “proposed route.” Please respond.

I should clarify that, contrary to Mr. Armand’s suggestion, FPL has not
proposed a route for approval by this Commission. The route or location of
the new line will be determined in a separate process under the Transmission
Line Siting Act and approved by the Siting Board. It is true that placing the
new line in a separate ROW will cost more than if it were placed in the
existing ROW. However, in FPL’s judgment, the mitigation of the risks and
consequences of the loss of all of the transmission facilities in the existing
common ROW is an important objective in light of the unique characteristics
of the Project Service Area and is well worth the estimated incremental cost of
the Project.  FPL’s recommendation is consistent with the NERC

Transmission Standards for a Category D Event.

Does this conclude your rebuttal testimony in this case?

Yes, it does.
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CHAIRMAN JABER: Exhibits?

MR. HOFFMAN: As far as exhibits go, Madam Chairman,
let me begin with a document, which I provided a copy to the
Commissioners and to the staff aﬁd to the court reporter.

It is FP&L's notice of filing the notices of this
final hearing that were published in newspapers in areas where
the proposed 1ine could be placed together with the affidavits
of publication, all of which are attached to the notice. And I
would ask that this exhibit be marked and admitted into the
record.

CHAIRMAN JABER: We'1l identify FP&L's notice of
filing notices of final hearing published in newspapers in area
where proposed Tine could be placed and the affidavits of
publication as a composite Exhibit Number 1.

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

(Exhibit 1 marked for identification.)

MR. HOFFMAN: Secondly, Madam Chairman, we would ask
that Exhibit A to FPL's petition for need determination
including the attachments and appendices to Exhibit A to the
petition be marked for identification and admitted into the
record.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Attachment A -- I'm sorry. Exhibit
A, which includes attachments and appendices to the petition
for need, will be identified as composite Exhibit Number 2.

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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(Exhibit 2 marked for identification.)

MR. HOFFMAN: Third, we have an exhibit to the
prefiled direct testimony of Mr. Schoneck, which is premarked
Exhibit WRS-1 entitled, Illustration Electrical Peninsula.

FP&L would ask that this document be marked for
identification as Exhibit 3 and admitted into the record.

CHAIRMAN JABER: WRS-1 is identified as hearing
Exhibit 3. '

(Exhibit 3 marked for identification.)

MR. HOFFMAN: I believe those are all the exhibits we
have, Madam Chairman.

" CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Without objection, Exhibits
1, 2 and 3 are admitted into the record.

(Exhibits 1, 2 and 3 admitted into the record.)

CHAIRMAN JABER§:'Mr. Hoffman, do you have anything
further to bring to our attention?

MR. HOFFMAN: I do, Madam Chairman.

As a result of some discussions we had with the
former intervenor in this case, FPL at this time would 1like to
place on the record FPL's revised request for a ruling from
this Commission. And what I'd 1ike to do, Madam Chairman, with
your permission is to essentially read that into the record.

-"CHAIRMAN JABER: Help me understand this. You want
to modify your initial request?

MR. HOFFMAN: Yes, ma'am.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay Go ahead and read into the 1ju
record your request and T may ‘have questions after that.
MR. HOFFMAN: Yes, ma'am. FPL requests that the
Commission enter a final order: First, that there's a need for

‘[Ithe Collier-Orange River #3 project with the starting point at

FPL's existing Orange River Substationlin Lee County and thelf
ending point at FPL's existing Cb]lierVSubstation in Collier
County.

Secondly, that the Commission final order reflect
that the construction and operation of the Collier-Orange River
#3 project will enhance electric system reliability and
integrity and will improve the availability of low cost
electrical energy within the State of Florida to assure the
economic well-being of the Sitizens of the state.

And, third, Madaih Chairman, that the location of the
Collier-Orange River #3 project on a right-of-way that is
geographically diverse from the existing common transmission
right-of-way between the Orange River and Collier Substations
will enhance electric system reliability, integrity and
restoration of service more ;hah location of the project on the
existing common right-of-way."However, FPL is mindfu] that
under the Transmission Line Siting Act the Siting Board could
determine that location of all or a port1on of the
Collier-Orange, Collier- Orange River #3 project on the ex1st1ng

common right-of-way has the least impacts regarding the-

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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criteria in Section 403.529(4), Florida Statutes.
I The final determ{nétion_of the most appropriate

corridor route, considering all of the factors I specified in

Section 403.529, Florida Statutes, will be made by the Siting
Board under the Transmission Line Siting Act.

And that concludes, Madam Chairman, our revised
request for relief from this Commission.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Hoffman, walk me through what
the differences are between your revised request and the
original request. That may -- certainly that's helpful to me.
1t may+be helpful to the other Commissioners.

4 .

And then you are not offering that as a stipulation

of the issues in the prehearing order. This is a modification
to the 1issues in the preheaging order.

MR. HOFFMAN: ﬁeél ma'am. It is effectively a
modification of our request for relief as originally set forth
in our petition.

And in a nutshe11; Madam Chairman, the difference
between the two is that in our original petition we requested
that the Commission make a need determination not only of the
need for a new 230kV transmission 1ine between the Orange'River
Substation and the Collier, and the Collier Substation, but
that the need determination be that the new 230kV transmission
line be placed on a separate right-of-way.

The issues that arose, Madam Chairman and

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Commissioners, was some question as to the extent of the
Commission's authority to include in this what I'11 call
packaged need determination the finding concerning the separate
right-of-way. |

We obviously felt and feel that the Commission has
that authority. But to resolve concerns of some interested
folks regarding that, we went ahead and agreed to amend our
request for relief so that now we're asking that the Commission
find that there is a need for the new 230kV transmission line
between the Orange River and Collier substations, and that the
Commission also independently find that the Tocation of the new
line on a geographically diverse right-of-way that is diverse
from the existing common right-of-way will enhance electric
system reliability, integrity and restoration of service more
than placing it on the existing right-of-way.

CHAIRMAN JABER: With respect to your modification on
the, the location of the right-of-way, this modification is
consistent with the stipulation the Commission accepted at the
start of this hearing.

MR. HOFFMAN: Yes, ma'am. That Tanguage is entirely
consistent with the recognition of the jurisdiction of the
Siting Board.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. So your modification to the
application for need is a direct result of the stipulation you

entered into with Mr. Wright and that we just approved?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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MR. HOFFMAN: I think that that's a fair

characterization, Madam Chairman.
" CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, do you have questions
with respect to the modificationé

I do have one question of staff in terms of
procedure, but certainly want to entertain whatever questions
the Commission has.

Staff, with respect to procedure, do you envision

we'll just go issue by issue and you'll modify your

"recommendation in Tight of the company's modification?

MR. HARRIS: Yes, ma'am, that was our intention.

MR. HOFFMAN: Madam Chairman, excuse me.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Go ahead, Mr. Hoffman.

MR. HOFFMAN: Before you move to staff, I just wanted
to add for the record that with the withdrawal of Barron
Collier from the proceeding, we believe that our petition and
testimony as stipulated in are uncontroverted so that the
circumstances of this proceeding are such that we believe it's
appropriate that the Commission issue a bench decision granting
our petition as revised in terms of our request for relief, and
we would very respectfully request that the Commission do so.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, I did envision,
frankly, a bench decision in this case, but we can certainly
talk about that and whatever questions you have.

Commissioner Davidson, you had a question?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: 1I'm 1in agreement with your

Icomment. But I would -- I don't have a copy of the revised
request. Would it be possible to get that? Thanks.

CHAIRMAN JABER: And, M}. Hoffman, I don't either. I
was frantically writing. Yeah. 1 guess none of us do. I was
writing down notes as you were speaking.

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Madam Chairman, I had a
question, but I think Mr. Hoffman anticipated that.

My question was going to be that based upon the
evidence that is in the record now that's in front of us, it's
uncontroverted that, that the, the geographic diverse location,
while it's not perhaps within our jurisdiction to order it,
that it is correct that it would enhance reliability and
improve restoration. That -- right now there's no evidence to
the contrary in this record; is that correct?

MR. HOFFMAN: Correct.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, do you have any other
iquestions?
H Are there objections, Commissioners, or concerns with
entertaining oral recommendations from staff and ruling on this
issue from the bench?

As you know, generally speaking I tend to favor that
when there 1is a case,”certa1n1y when there is a case that is
stipulated, as this one is, and where staff is ready to offer

oral recommendations. I think it expedites our process and

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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hopefully sends a strong signal to stakeholders and to our
staff that this is the way cases should be.

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: As a matter of fact, Madam
Chair, I was even, prior to the fime Mr. Hoffman made mention
of the, of his suggestion that we have a bench decision, I was
going to suggest that. So there 1is no opposition from this
Commissioner, and I would be strongly in favor of having a
bench decision today.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Thank you, Commissioner
Bradley.

Mr. Hoffman, were there any other matters you wanted
to bring to our attention before I move to staff?

MR. HOFFMAN: No, ma’am.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you.

Mr. Harris, what do you think? Do you -- are you
ready to make a recommendation on the issues we have in front
of us in this proceeding or do you need a break?

MR. HARRIS: We are almost ready. We do have a
composite exhibit we would 1like to introduce also on behalf of
staff.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Let's do that, and then I'11 break
for you.

MR. HARRIS:m Essentially -- and I'm not sure that we
need a break, if I could have a mere second to confer with my,

my staff.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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But the composite that we're handing out is
essentially three documents. It's a portion of Mr. Schoneck's
deposition that was taken this past Friday. It's a portion of
Mr. Mennes' deposition which was {aken yesterday. And then it
is the responses FPL provided to staff's interrogatories
numbers 1 through 6. It is not the complete text of the
depositions taken Friday or Monday. It's staff's portion of
that where we asked questions of the witnesses. It does not
include the questions asked by Barron Collier or the redirect

or recross, however it's characterized, by FPL. And I don't

|be11eve there’s any objection by FPL for that.

MR. HOFFMAN: No objections.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Harris, there's no objection to
staff's composite exhibit. So staff's composite exhibit that
consists of the deposition of Mr. Schoneck, the deposition of
Mr. Mennes and FP&L's responses to staff's interrogatories
1 through 6 will be identified as composite Exhibit 4 for
purposes of this hearing and will be admitted into the record.

(Exhibit 4 marked for identification and admitted into

‘the record.)

MR. HARRIS: I believe the technical staff had had an
opportunity, I believe, to integrate Mr. Hoffman's announcement
and are, I believe, prepared to proceed with an oral
recommendation at this time. And we could go either issue by

issue or make an entire recommendation. We would, we would

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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prefer to go issue by issue.
CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. Let's start with Issue

MR. HAFF: Thank you, 6ommissioners.

Issue 1: Is there a need for Florida Power & Light
Company's proposed Collier-Orange River 3 project given the
need for electric system reliability and integrity, as that
phrase is used in Section 403.537, Florida Statutes?

Staff recommends: Yes. FPL's planning studies
indicate that additional transmission capability will be needed
by December 2005 between Ft. Myers and Naples to alleviate
potential overloads and low voltage conditions from a single
contingency event. If FPL does not add new transmission
capability in the region by this time, overloads ranging from
102 percent to 124 percent of the thermal line rating are
forecasted under 11 separate single contingencies. Depending
on the specific outage or contingency, service interruption may

occur to between 7,200 and 41,100 electric customers.

Staff recommends that the single contingency
"vio]ations identified by FPL would be satisfied whether a 1line
is constructed in a new right-of-way or within the existing
Collier-Orange River corridor. Construction of a new line
within the existing corridor could leave the Naples load center
vulnerable to a multiple contingency event affecting the

existing entire corridor. FPL's proposal to build the

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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PC0111er-0range River #3 project in a new corridor would
mitigate such an event. The Transmission Line Siting Board
will make the final corridor selection for FPL's proposed
transmission line. |

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Haff, if I could interrupt you
|| for just a minute.

I neglected to state for the record that we are 1in
the part of this proceeding where staff is offering a
recommendation to a posthearing decision, so at this point
|[participation is Timited to staff and the Commission.

MR. HAFF: Okay. Issue 2: 1Is --

MR. HARRIS: Did you all want to vote on Issue 1 or
proceed with all the issues?
il COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Move Issue 1.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, do you have any
questions on staff's recommendation or a motion?

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I can move.

CHAIRMAN JABER: There's been a motion to approve
staff on Issue 1.
ﬂ COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Second.

CHAIRMAN JABER: And a second. Al1 those in favor,
say aye.

(Unanimous affirmative vote.)
| CHAIRMAN JABER: Issue 1 is approved.
MR. HAFF: Okay. Issue 2: Is there a need for

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Florida Power & Light Company's proposed Collier-Orange River
"3 Project given the need for abundant, Tow cost electrical
energy to assure the economic well-being of the citizens of the
state, as that phrase is used in éection 403.537, Florida
Statutes?

Staff recommends: Yes. FPL evaluated five

alternatives to the proposed Collier-Orange River #3 project.

Four of these alternatives were transmission projects in the

Ft. Myers-Naples region, while one alternative was the

construction of new generation near the Naples 1oad center.

One of the alternatives was the placement of the Coliier-Orange
River 3 1ine 1in the existing common right-of-way. It was the
least cost alternative ($25 million in net present value
dollars for 2003.) As discussed previously, this alternative

alleviates single contingency overloads. FPL had rejected this

|a1ternat1ve due to concerns with serving what amounts to an
electrical peninsula via a single corridor and to the inability
for future expansion of FPL's transmission system to the east
ﬂof the existing corridor.

By mitigating the forecasted single contingency
violation for 2005, the 1line would assure the economic
well-being of the citizens of the state by minimizing the
region's exposure to single contingency events. The net
present value cost of_fhe project proposed by FPL in a new

right-of-way is estimated between $32 million and $57 million

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




O 0O ~N o0 U1 =B W N =

(NCI TR LG T 1 T o S TR N TR T S T e S~ W TS U R R
(S 2 T -~ PR SR O < I Co B« o IR U e  NE S » IR - ST B LG R e =~

67
in 2003 dollars, and that is subject to the final right-of-way

routing and conditions of certification by the Transmission
Line Siting Board. The other four alternatives were either
more costly with a net present vélue of between $101 million
and $138 million or did not meet undervoltage or thermal
overload conditions under all single contingency events.

That's staff's recommendation on Issue 2.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. Commissioners, questions
"on staff’'s recommendation?

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I would -- I have no
questions.

CHAIRMAN JABER: You had a question, Commissioner
Baez?

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Well, I'm wondering as part of
the recommendation what the significance of the specific
alternatives are. Are they just for informational purposes?

MR. HAFF: Of the five alternatives to the proposal?

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Yeah.

MR. HAFF: Would you just 1ike a description of what,
what the alternatives are?

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Uh-huh.

MR. HAFF: Okay.

CHAIRMAN JABER: No.

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: No. I mean, you're giving us a

recommendation ultimately that, yes, there is a need pursuant
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to when you match it up against statutory requirements. And,
and I guess if we spent a good part of the beginning of the
hearing clarifying for all that 1t is not our, it is not within
our jurisdiction or it's not our JOb anyway to approve a
specific route --

MR. HAFF: Right.

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I'm -- I guess I'd like to
understand what significance are the alternatives in terms of
routes? I mean, you spoke a little bit about the different
alternatives.

MR. HAFF: Right.

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And I guess what is our, what are
we approving by your mentioning these?

MR. HAFF: Well, we're recommending that there's a
need for a transmission line, a 230kV Tine between Orange River
and Collier. And the alternatives had specific costs or some
other alternatives did not meet the single contingency
criterion.

The project as proposed by FPL has a range of costs.
The alternatives other than pui1d1ng in the existing corridor
were either more costly or didn't meet the criterion.

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Right.

MR. HAFF: It was -- as FPL found, it was less costly
to build this needed 1ine in the existing corridor. It's our

recommendation that building in the existing corridor would
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satisfy single contingency concerns. The question is whether
building in a new corridor is more preferable.

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And we've already -- and I guess
we've already addressed that eva{uation in Issue 1.

MR. HAFF: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commission Davidson?

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you, Chairman.

To what extent will the language in subparagraph (B)
of the revised request that Mr. Hoffman brought up to us be
reflected in the order? Will this exact language be used? Are
we making a finding as to (B) and, if so, can you discuss a
1ittle bit your comfort with the fact that we've got evidence
in the record to make the finding?

MR. HARRIS: Commissioner, you -- the Commission
will, of course, issue the order it feels appropriate. I
believe at this point the order that I was intending to draft
and present to the Commission for approval would include some
language in the findings portion, the body of the order, and it
would probably be substantially similar to the Tanguage
Mr. Hoffman read and that was handed out to you.

I have not heard the Commission's vote yet and so, of
course, I don't know what the order would say. And you-all
will issue the order and have final control. The order that I

would propose to you will probably include language similar to
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what was suggested in order to clarify that when the ordering
paragraph grants the petition, what is being granted is the
petition subject to these modifications. We would want that to
be explicitly clear 1in the body éf the order and in the
ordering paragraph itself.

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thanks.

CHAIRMAN JABER: But isn't, isn't (B) consistent with
what you recommended for this issue?

MR. HARRIS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay.

MR. HARRIS: Very much consistent.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. You just confused me when you
said you'd include findings similar to the language. The
findings will reflect our approval or, or not of your
recommendation; right?

MR. HARRIS: That is correct.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay.

MR. HARRIS: I don't want to commit, unless I'm told
to by the Commission, to using this exact Tanguage as proposed
by FPL. Of course, we'll draft the order that the Commission
wants to issue.

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Fine. And I hope I didn't
cause confusion here.

CHAIRMAN JABER: No.

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: I just wanted to, to make

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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certain that you were familiar with the language in (B), and
ask whether or not you feel we've got evidence to support that
finding.

MR. HARRIS: Abso]ute1§. Staff has reviewed that,
and we do believe the record evidence in this case supports
that finding.

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Perfect. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. And, Commissioner Bradley,
you were ready to make a motion to approve staff's
recommendation?

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Yes, I most certainly was.

And I will formally make my motion, and that is that we approve
staff's recommendation as it relates to Issue 2.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, Commissioner. And a
second?

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Second.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Al1 those 1in favor, say aye.

(Unanimous affirmative vote.)

CHAIRMAN JABER: Issue 2 is approved.

Issue 3.

MR. HAFF: Issue 3: Are Florida Power & Light
Company's Collier and Orange River electrical substations the
appropriate starting and ending points of the proposed Collier-
Orange River #3 project as required by Section 403.537, Florida

statutes?
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Staff recommends: Yes. The Collier Substation is
adjacent to the Naples load center, while the existing Orange
River Substation is adjacent to FPL's Ft. Myers generating
station. In addition, the Orangé River Substation is connected
to the rest of FPL's electric system via existing 500kV and
230kV transmission 1ines. And that's our recommendation on
Issue 3.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. And similar to the question
Commissioner Davidson just asked you on Issue 2 I have on Issue
3. And I guess, Commissioners, we should also talk about
what's required in this order.

I feel strongly with respect to articulating our
understanding in the order about our jurisdiction and what we
believe the jurisdiction of the Siting Board is, and I think
that's easy to do with respect to we've approved the
stipulation that speaks to that point and I think this issue
speaks to that point.

So my request, Commissioners, is you make the motion
on Issue 3 and, staff, as you draft the order, that we are real
clear on that. I don't want this order misunderstood. I think
we should articulate the requirements under 403 for the
Commission and those should be our findings of fact and
conclusions of law. But there needs to be a section on
jurisdiction and I don't care how you get there. I don't care

if you use the stipulation in this issue to get there or, or it
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deserves a separate section. But I don't want DEP and the
Siting Board to misunderstand what we've done. We've complied
with 403 and, and I think the Commissioners would agree that we
recognize the ability of the Sit{ng Board to ultimately decide
the Tocation or parts of the location for what we've referred
to as point, the starting point and the ending point, Mr.
Harris.

MR. HARRIS: Yes. I understand.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. And as I Took at sub (C) that
was handed out by Mr. Hoffman, I think that's consistent with
my desire to be clear on jurisdiction. And if that's your
recommendation on Issue 3, I can be supportive.

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Just let me clarify. There
will be Tanguage in the order though consistent with the
stipulation that we approve that the diverse -- a diverse
geographic route has advantages, but it's just that's as far as
we will take it. Then that will be up to the Siting Board
obviously to take that and balance all other interests 1in
making its final determination.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Right. And what I'm suggesting,
Commissioner Deason, 1is the entirety of what you said should be
articulated in the order.

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioner Davidson, you had a

question or a comment.
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COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Actually a motion.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. There are no other questions?
Okay. A motion?

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON:* A motion that captures, I
hope, the essence of, of what you articulated, Chairman, which
would be a motion to approve staff on Item 3, with the caveat
that they include in the draft order an articulation of the
requirements under 403 that we're satisfying, a short section
on jurisdiction which recognizes the authority of the Siting
Board. And I would propose that we don't have -- a statement
that we don't have specific authority necessarily to approve a
specific route and include that part of Section 3 as revised
that works with your finding.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, Commissioner Davidson.

Question, Commissioner Bradley?

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Yes. And I -- just -- not a
question but a statement. Well, sort of a question.

Doesn't subsection (C) capture pretty much though
what your concerns are as well as Commissioner Davidson's
concerns, or, or does it need to be cleared up, does the
language need to be cleared up?

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioner Davidson, you may have
to clarify for me. I“think -- I thought your motion did
reference sub (C) and that was part of your motion to accept

this language. But obviously, you know, you can --

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: It did. And if sub (C)

addresses the concerns that we've raised here, I think staff
would, would have a fine order. And, if not, I would suggest
to staff if there's an additionaf statement that needed to be
added as to jurisdiction, add that.

MR. HARRIS: I think I understand the Commission's
intent and can draft an order that'll meet that intent.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Commissioner Bradley, I think
the Tanguage under (C) resolves Issue 3 and some. But I think
in the abundance of caution, if staff believes there should be
a separate issue on jurisdiction, I don't think there's
anything wrong with that.

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I agree.

CHAIRMAN JABER: There is a motion by Commissioner
Davidson.

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Second.

CHAIRMAN JABER: And a second. A1l those in favor,
say aye.

(Unanimous affirmative vote.)

CHAIRMAN JABER: Issue 3 is approved.

Issue 4.

MR. HAFF: Issue 4: Should the Commission grant
Florida Power & Light Company's petition for determination of
need for the proposed Collier-Orange River #3 project?

Staff recommends: Yes. The Collier and Orange River

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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electrical substations are the appropriate starting and ending
points for the needed transmission line. A 230 kilovolt
transmission 1ine connecting the Collier and Orange River
substations is needed to ensure é]ectric substation reliability
and integrity in Southwest Florida. A 230 kilovolt
transmission line connecting Collier and Orange River
substations is needed to provide abundant, Tow cost electrical
energy to assure the economic well-being of the citizens of the
state, particularly in Southwest Florida. The Transmission
Line Siting Board will make the final corridor selection for
FPL's proposed transmission line.

And that's our recommendation on Issue 4.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, do you have questions
on the recommendation or a motion?

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I would -- a motion, if there
are no questions. Are there any questions?

CHAIRMAN JABER: No.

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I would move that we approve
Issue 4 as proposed by staff.

CHAIRMAN JABER: There's been a motion to approve
staff's recommendation on Issue 4. Second?

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Second.

CHAIRMAN JABER: And a second. All those in favor,
say aye.

(Unanimous affirmative vote.)

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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CHAIRMAN JABER: 1Issue 4 is approved.

Issue 5, staff.

MR. HARRIS: Issue 5 is should the docket be closed?
Staff's recommendation is yes. |

CHAIRMAN JABER: Motion, Commissioners?

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Move it.

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Second.

CHAIRMAN JABER: There's been a motion and a second.
A11 those 1in favor, say aye.

(Unanimous affirmative vote.)

CHAIRMAN JABER: Issue 5 is approved.

This proceeding is concluded.

MR. HARRIS: I have one correction to make, if I
might, Madam Chairman.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Go ahead, Mr. Harris.

MR. HARRIS: On staff's composite exhibit the
deposition transcripts that were introduced are the first
version. They have not been read and signed by the FPL
witnesses. And so I don't know if we need to reserve FPL's
right to be able to have their witnesses read and sign the
final depositions and then substitute, if there's any changes,
the changes made for the ones that were introduced in staff's
exhibit. This is not a posthearing recommendation.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Hoffman, do you want an

opportunity to file an errata sheet?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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MR. HOFFMAN: We would 1ike that opportunity. We
will get back with staff within the next day or two, if that
works.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay.l Composite Exhibit 4 will be
used to, for staff's composite exhibit, which includes the
deposition transcripts. And let the record reflect you have an
opportunity to file the errata sheets.

Commissioner Bradley?

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Yes. And before we conclude,
I'd Tike to offer up the motion to have a bench decision made
today by, by this body.

CHAIRMAN JABER: To --

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I thought you were about to
say that we are concluding, and earlier I made the statement
that, that I was going to make a motion for a bench decision.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Oh, you mean after the fact?

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: And I'm just trying -- yes.
And I'm just trying to figure out at what point and how do I
appropriately get that, put that motion forward?

CHAIRMAN JABER: I think we don't have to. I think
we just -- we moved, we moved into the bench decision phase and

I closed the record. And we went through issue by issue, so I

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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CHAIRMAN JABER: But, you know, Commissioner Bradley,

you're right. And correct me next time in the future because
probably the most appropriate way would have been to entertain
the motion for a bench decision énd move, you know, into that.
But I sort of skipped that.

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Staff, I wanted to take an
opportunity to commend you for your hard work.

Mr. Walker, I guess you did a good job. Certainly
you put a good team together.

Parties, thank you very much.

Commissioners --

MR. HARRIS: Madam Chairman, I do have one other
clarification I'd Tike to make. I'm sorry.

CHAIRMAN JABER: You need to hurry it up.

MR. HARRIS: I'm sorry, Madam. On the
confidentiality we granted earlier, just for the sake of
clarification, the staff recommendation was going to be the
standard 18 months. Since we had not specifically set a time
line, I wanted to make that clear that the recommendation, the
order would say 18 months, and perhaps give FPL an opportunity
to object to that if they wanted to.

I don't -- staff does not recommend any additional
time other than the statutory 18 months in this case.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Well, I ruled on the request for

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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confidentiality. So unless you plan on putting a ruling in the
order you do that memorializes this vote, I should probably
clarify that my ruling includes -- the materials will be
returned in 18 months; is that wﬁat you want?

MR. HARRIS: Yes, ma'am.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay.

MR. HARRIS: Or will be held confidential for 18
months.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. So let the record reflect
that the ruling on confidential classification includes a
provision that the material will be held confidential for 18
months.

MR. HARRIS: And that was my last interruption.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. This proceeding is concluded.

(Proceeding concluded at 1:21 p.m.)

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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STATE OF FLORIDA )

: CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
COUNTY OF LEON )

I, LINDA BOLES, RPR, Official Commission
Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing proceeding was
heard at the time and place herein stated.

IT IS FURTHER CERTIFIED that I stenographically
reported the said proceedings; that the same has been
transcribed under my direct supervision; and that this
transcript constitutes a true transcription of my notes of said
proceedings.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a relative, emg]oyee,

attorney or counsel of any of the parties, nor am I a relative

or employee of any of the parties’ attorneys_or counsel

%ﬂnnec%ed with the action, nor am I financially interested in
e action.

DATED THIS 10th DAY OF APRIL, 2003.

-

FPSC Official Commission Reporter
(850) 413-6734
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Petition for Determination of Need for )
Collier-Orange River 230 kV Transmission ) Docket No. 030084-EI
Line in Collier, Hendry, and Lee Counties, )
by Florida Power & Light Company. ) Filed: March 5, 2003
)

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY’S
NOTICE OF FILING
NOTICES OF FINAL HEARING PUBLISHED
IN NEWSPAPERS IN AREAS WHERE
PROPOSED LINE COULD BE PLACED AND
DA F T
Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL”), by and through its undersigned counsel and
pursuant to Rule 25-22.075(4), Florida Administrative Code, hereby submits the Notices of Final
Hearing published in the following newspapers of general circulation in the areas where FPL’s
proposed Collier Orange-River #3 230 kV transmission line could be placed:
1. Ft. Myers News-Press - - published on February 20, 2003;
2. Naples Daily News - - published on February 20, 2003;
3. Hendry-Glades Sunday News - - published on February 16, 2003; and
4. The Clewiston News - - published on February 20, 2003,

The above-referenced Notices of Final Hearing and the Affidavits of Publication of such

Notices are filed herewith as Composite Exhibit “A” to this Notice of Filing.
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DOCKET
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Respectfully submitted,

/

N ALY
KENNETH X#OFFMAN, ESQ.
Rutledge, Ecenia, Purnell & Hoffman, P.A.
P. O. Box 551 '

Tallahassee, Florida 32302
Telephone: 850-681-6788
Telecopier: 850-681-6515

--and - -

R. WADE LITCHFIELD, ESQ.
Florida Power & Light Company
Senior Attorney

700 Universe Boulevard

Juno Beach, Florida 33408-0420
(561) 691-7101 (Telephone)
(561) 691-7135 (Telecopier)

Attorneys for Florida Power & Light Company

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing was furnished by Hand Delivery to the
following this 5™ day of March, 2003:

Larry Harris, Esq.

Division of Legal Services

Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Qak Boulevard
Room 370

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

NNETH A. f{}SFFMAN ESQ.

FPL\noticeoffiling
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NEWS-PPESS
Published every m. .ng — Daily and
Sunday
Fort Myers, Florida

Affidavit of Publication

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF LEE

Before the undersigned authority, personally appeared
Kieanna Henry

who on oath says that he/she is the
Asst, Legal Clerk of the News-Press, a

daily newspaper, published at Fort Myers, in Lee County,

Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement, being a

notice of hearin
in the matter of

Determination Hearing for Florida Public Service -

in the Court was
published in said newspaper in the issues of

February 20, 2003

Affiant further says that the said News-Press is a paper of general
circulation daily in Lee, Charlotte, Collier, Glades and Hendry
Counties and published at Fort Myers, in said Lee County,
Florida and that said newspaper has heretofore  been

contimiously published in said Lee County, Florida, ecach day, -

and has been entered as a second class maij)l matter at the post
office in Fort Myers in said Lee County, Florida, for a period of
one year next preceding the first publication of the attached copy
of the advertisement; and afflant further says that he/she has
neither paid nor promised any perseln, firm or corporation any
discount, rebats, commission or refund for the purpese of
securing this advertisement for publication in the said
NewSspaper.

Sworn to and sulpscribed before me

20th day of February, 2003 by

Kieanna Henry
personally known to me or who has produced

as identification, and who did or did nat take an
cath. .
Notary Public Qéw J (e

Print Name U

My commission Expires:

pRlk, Bren
. 3 do Lelgh
Ta3 MY COMMISSION # m’g‘;‘;ﬂ% EXPIRE
F Febnug s
: st ry 14, 2007
DTHRY TROY FAN INSURANCE, .

. By diraction of the Florida Public Service Commission.

BEFORE" . FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
NO £ OF NEED DETERMINATION HEARING
DOCKET NO. 030084-E)

PETITION OF FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY TG DETERMINE T
THE NEED FOR A PROPOSED 230 KV ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION LINE i

Notice is hereby given that the Flarida Public Service Commission will hold a
public hearing in the above docket at the following time and place:

April 8-2, 2003, Beginning at 9:30 AM.
Florida Public Service Commission
Easley Conference Centet
2540 Shumard Qak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

: PURPOSE AND PROCEDURE

The purpose of this hearing will be for a delenmination of need pursuant to Section 403.537,
Florida Statutes (2002), for the construction of a 230 kV electrical transmigsion line. Segments of
this 230 kV electrical transmission line may be located in Lee, Hendry and/or Collier Counties.
The proposed slectrical transmission line will start at FPU's Orange River Substation in Lee County
and will terminate at FPL's Collier Substation in Collier County. The proceedings will be govermned
by the provisions of Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, Section 403.537, Florida Statutes, and
Rules 25-22.075 and 25-22.078, Florida Administrative Code. Anyone wishing to become a
party to the need determination proceeding should file an appropriate petition pursuant to Rule
25-22 039, Florida Administrative Code, with the Director, Commission Clerk and Administrative
Sarvices Division, at the following address:

Director, Commission Clerk and Administrative Services Division
Florida Public Service Commission '
. 2540 Shumard Qak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850
fe: Docket No. 030084-El

.PREHEARING CONFERENCE
A prehearing conference will be conducted at the following time and place:

March 31, 2003 at 1:30 P.M.
Florida Public Service Commission
Eastey Conference Center
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

The purpose of this prehearing conference will be to consider: (1) the simpiification of the
issues; (2) the identification of tha positions of the parties on the issues; (3) the identification of
witnesses and exhibits; (4) the establishment of an order of witnesses; (5) the possibility of
obtaining stiputations concerning any matters at issue; and (6) the resclution of any remaining
procedural matters that may aid in the disposition of the action.

APPLICATION : :
A copy of the Pstition for Determination of Need and supporting exhibits will be available for
public inspaction during normal business hours at the following locations, beginning on or abou'
February 26, 2003: ; '

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
16813 Lee Sireet, Ft. Myers, FL 33901 4105 15TH Avenue S, W., Naples, FL 34116

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
Easley Conference Center
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850

JURISDICTION

_Jurisdiction over Florida Power & Light Company and this action is vested in the Cormission

pursuant to Chapler 366, Florida Statutes and Seclion 403.537, Florida Statutes.

EPL

Blanca 8. Bayo, Directer -~ . - - -
Commission Clerk and Administrative Services .

an FPL Group company




NAPLES DATILY NEWS
Published Daily
Naples, FL 34102

Affidavit of Publication

State of Florida
County of Collier

Before the undersigned they serve as the authority, personally
appeared . Angela Bryant, who on oath says that they

serve as the Administrative Assistant To The Publisher of the
Naples Daily, a daily newspaper published at Naples, in
Collier County, Florida; distributed in Collier and Lee counties
of Florida; that the attached copy of the advertising, being a

in the matter of  PUBLIC NOTICE

was published in said newspaper 1 time (s) in the issne
on February 20, 2003

Affiant further says that the said Naples Daily News is a newspaper
published at Naples, in said Collier County, Florida, and that the said
newspaper has heretofors been continuously published in said Collier
County, Florida; distributed in Collier and Lee counties of Florida,
cach day and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post
office in Naples, in said Collier County, Florida, for 2 pericd of 1
year next preceding the first publication of the attached copy of
advertisement; and affiant further says that he has neither paid ner
promised any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate,
commission or refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for
publication in the said newspaper.

ez V@ccQ{

( Signature of affiant) "

Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 20" day of February, 2003

(Signature of notary public)

o Donna Chesney
f ,‘%; My Commission DD058336

‘)q Expires September 11, 2005
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+ ' ' | BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE-COMMISSION -
- NOTICE OF NEED DETERMINATION HEARING . !

s T oo bR ey -
1 .. PETITION OF FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY TO DETERMINE

THE NEED FOR A PROPOSED 230 KY ELEC"TRICAL TRANSMISSION LINE

. . Notice Is hereby given that the Florida Public Service Commission wili hold a |
.« . public hearing In the above dos:k?l atthe foliowing time and place:
- © April 8-9, 2003, Beginning at 30 AM. T ¢
* " Fiorida Public Sefvice Commission .«
- Easlay Confersnca Center
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassea, Florida 32399-0850 -

- " PURPOSE AND PROGEDURE - * " i _
The putpose of this hearing will be for a determination of need purguant to Section 403.537,
Florida Statutes (2002}, for the Sonstruction of a 230 kV elactrical transmission lins. Segments of
this 230 kV electrical transnission line may be located in Lee, Mendry and/or Gollier Counties,
The proposed electrical transmission lin will start at FPL's Orange River Substation in Lee County
and will terminate at FPL's Coltier Substation in Collier County, The proceadifigs will be govemed
by the provisions of Chapter. 120;: Florida Statutes, . Séction "403.537, Florida Stattes,, and
Rules 25-22.075 and 25-22.076," Florida Administralive Code. Anyone. wishing to becde a
parly 1o the naed determination proceeding should file an appropriale petition pursuant to Rule

- 25.22,039, Flotida Adminisirative Code, with the Director, Comnhission Clerk and Administrative
Sarvices Division, at the lpliowlhg_'adglress: : " G W owmdy

Direcior, Cominission Clérk and Administrative Services Division . .

;. .f{  Fiorde Public Sgivice Commissio

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevérd:
- Taliahassee, Floridd 32399-085

"

s
‘

g R gt

Florida Public Service Commission -
) Easlay Conference Center
© 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahasses, Florida 32399-0850

The purpose of this prehearing conference will be to consider: (1) the simplification of the
issues; (2) the {dentification of the positions of the parties on the issues; (3) the identification of
witnesses and exhibits; (4) the establishment of an order of witnesses; (5) the possibility of
obtaining stipulations concerming any matters at issue; and (5) the resolution of any remaining
procedural matters that may aid in the disposition of the action.

: APPLICATION . B
A copy of the Petition for Determination of Need and supporting exhibits will be available for
- public Inspection during normal business hours at the following Jocations, beginning on or about

February 28, 2003: ) : :
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

1813 Lee Strest, Ft. Myars, FL 33501 4105 15TH Avenue S.W., Naples, FL 34116

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
S Easley Conference Center.“, - ...
| 2640 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Fl. 32398-0850
. . JURISDICTION T
Jurisdiction over Florida Power & Light Company and this action is vested in the Commission
pursuant to Chapter 366, Florida Statutes and Section 403.537, Florida Statutes,

By direction of the Fiorida Public Service Commission.

0

- - Blanca §. Bayo, Director - - o W .0 '_ D P
) " Commission Clerk and Adminlstrative Services U L )
B P . R oo e L ' . S add

. - w0 Lo . (v_‘ S _l‘ Lo .'2'7 Hdy
hill E an FPLGrouf company - - A N PPR . " - f
- .o S 1




SUNDAY NEWS

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
State of Florida « County of Hendry
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BEFOFIE THE FLOHIDA PUBLIC SEHVICE COMMISSION
NOTICE OF NEED DETERMINATION HEARING . .
DOCKET NO. 030084-El, .

- PETITION OF FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY TO DETERMINE™
- THE NEED FOR A PROPOSED 230 KV ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION LINE

Notice is heraby given that the Fiorida Public Service Commission will hold a
o publlc hearing In the above docket at the iollowmg time and placu '

April 8-9, ‘2003, Baginning at 9:30 AM.
Flonda Public Service Commission

- Easley Conference Center ' , | .

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard R
Tallahassee. Florida 32399-0850 ’

Cow : PURPOSE AND PROCEDURE : ’

The purposa of this hearing will be for a determination of need pursuant to Section 403.537,
Florida . Statutes’ {2002}, for the construction of a 230 kV electrical transmission line.
Segments of this 230 KV electrical transimission line may be located in Lee, Hendry and/or

e

. Collisr Counties. The propesad ‘slectrical transmission line will start at FPL's Orange River,

Substation in Les County and will terminate at FPL's Collier Subgtation in Collisr County, The
proceedings will be govemed by the provisions of Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, Section
403,537, Florida Statutes, and Rules 25-22.075 and 25-22.076, Florida Administrative Code. -
Anyona wishing to become aparty to the heed determination proceeding should file an

" appropriate pstition pursuant to Rule 25-22.039, Florida Administrative Cods, with the

Dnrector. Commssnon Clerk and Admlmstfalwe Services Division, at the followmg address

Dwector, Commissnon Clerk and Administrative Services DMsnon

" Fiorida Public Service Commission - .

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard . -

Talfahassea Florida 32399-0850 |
Re: Docket No. 030034—EI

i e 4

L% .-~ ' PREHEARING CONFERENCE

A prehearing conference will be conducted at the followmg time and piaca

- Marzch 31’2“003 at 1:30 P.M.-
" Florida Public Service Commission
Easley Conference Center
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

The purpose of this prehearing conference will be to consider: (1) the simplification of the
issues; (2) the identification of the positions of the parties on the issues; (3} the
identification of withesses and exhibits; {4) the establishment of an order ol witnesses;
_(5) the possibility of obtammg stipulations concerning any matters at issue; and (6) the
resolution of any remaining procedural matters that may aid in the dlsposmon of the achon

APPLICATION
A copy ‘of the Patition for Determination of Need and supporting exhibits will be available
for public inspection duting normal business hours at the following Iocahcms. bagmnlng on

s or about February 28, 2003;

FLOFUDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
1813 Lee Street, Ft. Myers, F1. 33901 4105 15TH Avenue S.W., Naples, FL 34116

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
Easley Conference Center .
2540 Shumard Oak Boulavard, Tallahasses, FL 32399-0850

JUFIISDICTION . %

Junsdlctlon over Florida Power & Light Company and this action is vested in the Commission
pursuant to Chapter 366, Florida Statutes and Section 403637, Fiorida Statutes.

By direction of the Florida Public Service Commission. !

Blanca S. Bayo, Director.
Cornmissfon Clerk and Administrative Sannces

FPL

S

anr FPL Group company




The Clewiston News
Published Weekly Clewiston, Florida

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

State of Florida
County of Hendry

Before the undersigned authority, personally appeared Debra
Miller, who on oath says she is the Editor of the Clewiston News, a
weekly newspaper published at Clewiston in Hendry County, Florida,
that  the attached copy of advertisement being a

At ' in Qe matter

4 At B 7Y FARUAA

Bao

W i f AV E L .l' AL A_.Jl Ad" ¢
YA ’.JI 4, IJL.&‘ "mare/ L.A AW Lm /.e,u Lae in the

court, was published in said newspaper in the issue(s)

of%&b&ﬂﬂﬁgf f;)na 2003

Affiant further saws that the said Clewiston News is a newspaper
published at Clewiston, in 'said Hendry County, continuously published
in said Hendry County, Florida, each week, and has been entered as
periodicals matter at the post office in Clewiston, in said Hendry
County, Florida, for a period of one year next preceding the first
publication says that she has neither paid nor promised any person,
firm or corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund for the
purpose of securing this advertisement for publication in the said
newspaper.

. ) Th
Sworn to and subscribed before me this ﬁQ_day of M,&O_@B

-

Notary Public

S, Tracy L. Rounds
e Conthsion #DD161434
-4 % 25 Expires: Oct 28, 2006
o AT & Bonded Thru

“4mw Atlantic Bonding Co., Inc.



BEFORE THE FLOR" = UBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION -
v NOTICE OF NE . DETERMINATION HEARING
DOCKET NO. 030084-E)

PETITION OF FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY TO DETERMINE
THE NEED FOR A PROPOSED 230 KV ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION LINE

Notice is hereby given that the Florida Public Service Commission will hold a
public hearing in the above docket at the following time and place:

April 8-8, 2003, Beginning at 9:30 A.M.
Florida Public Sarvice Commission
Easley Confarance Center
2540 Shumard Qak Boulevard
Tallahasses, Florida 32399-0850

PURPOSE AND PROCEDURE )

The pumpose of this hearing will be for a determination of need pursuant to Section 403.537,
Florida Statutes (2002), for the construction of a 230 kV electrical transmission line. Segments of
this 230 kV electrical transmission line may be located in Lee, Hendry and/or Collier Countias.
The propaosed electrical transmission fine will stant at FPL's Orange River Substation in Lee County
and will terminate at FPU's Collier Substation in Collier County. The proceedings will be govemed
by the provisions of Chapler 120, Florida Statutes, Section 403.537, Flonda Statules, and
Rules 25-22.075 and 25-22.076, Florida Adminigtrative Code. Anyone wishing to become a
party to the need determination proceeding should file an appropriate petition pursuant o Rule
25-22.039, Florida Administrative Code, with the Director, Commission Clem and Administrative
Services Division, at the following address:

Director, Commission Clerk and Administrative Sarvices Divislon
Flotida Public Service Gommission
2540 Shumard Qak Boulevard
Tallahasses, Florida 32399-0850
Re: Docket No. 030084-Et

PREHEARING CONFERENCE
A prehearing conference will be conducted at the following time and place; " -

March 31, 2003 at 1:30 PM.
Florida Public Servica Commission
Easlay Conferance Center
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahasses, Florida 32399-0850

The purpose of this prehearing conference will be to consider: (1) the simplification of the
issues; (2) the identification of the positions of the parties on the issues; (3) the identification of
witnesses and exhibits; (4) the establishment of an order of witnesses; (5} the possibility of
obtaining stipulations concerning any matters at issue; and {B) the rasoiuuon of any remaining
procedural matters that may aid in the disposition of the action,

APPLICATICN
A copy of the Petition for Determination of Naed and supporting exhibits will be available for
public inspaction during normal business hours at the following locations, beginning on or about
February 26, 2003:

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
1813 Lea Street, Ft. Myers, FL 33901 4105 15TH Avenue S.W.,, Naples, FL. 34116

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
Easley Conferance Center s
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32309-0850

JURISDICTION
Jurisdiction over Florida Power & Light Company and this action Is vasted in the Commission
pursuant g Chapter 366, Florida Statutes and Section 403.537, Florida Statutes.

By direction of the Florida Public Serwce Commission.
Blanca S. Bayo, Director

Commission Clerk and Administrative Services ) %

an FPL Group company . FPL
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Petition for Determination of Need for )

Collier-Orange River 230kV Transmission ) Docket No. 030084-EI

Line in Collier, Hendry, and Lee Counties, )

by Florida Power & Light Company ) Filed: February 26, 2003
)

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY’S
PETITION TO DETERMINE NEED FOR
RI T 1
Petitioner Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL”), by and through its undersigned
counsel, hereby petitions the Florida Public Service Commission (“Commission”) to determine,
pursuant to Section 403.537, Florida Statutes (2002), and Rules 25-22.075 and 25-22.076, Florida
Administrative Code, that there is a need for the proposed electrical transmission line described
herein. In suppbrt of its Petition, FPL states:
1. The name and address of the affected agency are:
Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850
2. FPL is an investor-owned electric utility that provides electric service to customers
in its service area. FPL’s full name and business address are:
Florida Power & Light Company

9250 West Flagler Street
Miami, Florida 33174

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

o e OgY DOCUMENT NUMPER-DATE
NO. - EXHI - ch .
e BTN Sy 1 960 FEBZ6 S
WITNESS. 1 W/ E A

DATE: D408 ESC -COMMISSION CLERK



3. All pleadings, motions, notices, staff recommendations, orders or other documents

filed or served in this proceeding should be served upon the following individuals on behalf of FPL:

Mr. William G. Walker, II1 Kenneth A. Hoffman, Esq.

Vice President, Regulatory Affairs Marsha E. Rule, Esq.

Florida Power & Light Company Rutledge, Ecenia, Purmell & Hoffman, P.A.
215 S. Monroe Street P. O. Box 551

Suite 800 Tallahassee, Florida 32302

Tallahassee, FL 32301 850/681-6788 (Telephone)

850/521-3910 (Telephone) 850/681-6515 (Telecopier)

850/521-3939 (Telecopier)
--and - -

R. Wade Litchfield, Esq.
Florida Power & Light Company
Senior Attorney
700 Universe Boulevard
Juno Beach, Florida 33408-0420
(561) 691-7101 (Telephone)
(561) 691-7135 (Telecopier)

4. FPL proposes to construct and operate a 230kV electrical transmission line as
described in Exhibit A attached hereto. The proposed transmission line would originate at FPL’s
Orange River Substation in Lee County and would terminate at FPL’s Collier Substation in Collier
County, located on a right-of-way (“ROW™) that is geographically diverse from the existing common
transmission line ROW between these two substations (the “Collier-Orange River #3 Project™). The
line has a planned in-service date of December, 2005.

5. The Collier-Orange River #3 Project is subject to the Transmission Line Siting Act
(“TLSA”™), Sections 403.52-403.5365, Florida Statutes (2002).

6. Pursuant o the TLSA and Section 403.537, Florida Statutes (2002), and Rules 25-

22.075 and 25-22.076, Florida Administrative Code, the Commission has jurisdiction to determine



the need for the Collier-Orange River #3 Project, applying the standards set forth in Section
403.537(1)(b), Florida Statutes (2002).

7. The information required to be supplied for the need determination pursuant to Rule
25-22.076, Florida Administrative Code, appears in Exhibit A hereto and is incorporated herein by
reference. | Fifteen (15) copies of this Petition with Exhibit A are filed herewith.

8. FPL is charged with serving both its existing customers and new customers that locate
in its service territory as well as any wholesale transmission customers. Currently, FPL forecasts
continued strong customer and load growth in the territory affected by the proposed Collier-Orange
River #3 Project for the foreseeable future.

9. The data and analyses contained in Exhibit A demonstrate the need for the Collier-
Orange River #3 Project in the proposed time frame as the most cost-effective alternative available,
taking into account the demand for electricity, the need for electric system reliability and integrity,
the need for abundant, low-cost electrical energy to assure the economic well-being of the citizens
of this state, the starting and ending points of the line, and other relevant matters pursuant to Section
403.537(1)(b), Florida Statutes (2002).

10.  As demonstrated in more detail in Exhibit A and the prefiled direct testimony
submitted contemporaneously with this Petition, the Collier-Orange River #3 Project is needed in
December 2005 to: (a) avoid violations of numerous single contingency transmission criteria
related to the potential outage of existing transmission facilities that are situated on a common ROW
between the Orange River Substation and Collier Substation; and (b) provide another electrical feed
via a separate ROW into the Collier/Naples area, thereby reducing the impact of a loss of the existing
transmission facilities on the common ROW. The injection of an additional 230kV line on a

3



separate ROW between the Orange River Substation and Collier Substation by December 2005 is
necessary to serve the increasing load and customer base in the area south of Ft. Myers and to
provide a diverse path of power supply to this heavily populated area, thereby enhancing reliability
and service restoration efforts.

11.  In order to enable FPL and the Commission to comply with the notice requirements
of Section 403.537(1)(a), Flonida Statutes (2002) and Rule 25-22.075, Florida Administrative Code,
FPL previously filed a Notice of Intent to File Petition for Transmission Line Need Determination
on January 27, 2003. The Commission has set the final hearing in this docket for April 8-9, 2003.
FPL has published notice of that hearing in the appropriate newspapers in accordance with the
statutory requirements and the requirements of Rule 25-22.076(4), Florida Administrative Code.

WHEREFORE, FPL respectfully requests that the Commission:

A. Hold a hearing on this Petition in accordance with Section 403.537, Florida Statutes,
Chapter 120, Florida Statutes (2002), and applicable rules of the Commission;

B. Determine that there is a need for the Collier-Orange River #3 Project, with the
starting point at FPL’s existing Collier Substation in Collier County, and the ending point at FPL’s
existing Orange River Substation in Lee County, located on a right-of-way that is geographically
diverse from the existing common transmission line night-of-way between these two substations,

subject to the final corridor determination under the Transmission Line Siting Act; and



C. Enter a final order determining such need for the Collier-Orange River #3 Project.

Respectfully submitted,

YA A
KENNETH A. HO%AN, ESQ.

Rutledge, Ecenia, Pumnell & Hoffman, P.A.
P. O. Box 551

Tallahassee, Florida 32302

Telephone: 850-681-6788

Telecopier: 850-681-6515

--and - -

R. WADE LITCHFIELD, ESQ.
Florida Power & Light Company
Senior Attorney

700 Universe Boulevard

Juno Beach, Florida 33408-0420
(561) 691-7101 (Telephone)
(561) 691-7135 (Telecopier)



ERTIFICAT \'4 |

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing was furnished by Hand Delivery to the
following this 26 day of February, 2003:

Larry Harris, Esq.

Division of Legal Services

Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Room 370

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

KENNETH A%MAN ESQ.

FPL\needpetition
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Executive Summary:

The need for the Collier-Orange River #3 Project (sometimes referred to hereinafter as

the “Project”™) is based on several considerations:

e The need to serve the increasing load and customer base in the area south of Fort
Myers, including the Naples load center, in a reliable manner consistent with North
American Electric Reliability Council (“NERC”) Transmission System Standards.

e The need for another electrical feed via a separate Right-of-Way (“ROW?”) path into
the Naples load center, thereby reducing the impact of a loss of the existing
transmission facilities on a common ROW.

e The ability to efficiently maintain transmission facilities and mitigate the risks of an
impact on reliability.

e The opportunity, subject to final ROW siting under the Transmission Line Siting Act
("TLSA”), to efficiently | and effectively integrate and serve new distribution
substations that will be needed to serve projected load growth south of Fort Myers in
Lee and Collier Counties.

e The ability to provide efficient future long range transmission expansion by acquiring

additional ROW while practicable routes remain available.

The area south of Fort Myers is bounded on the north by the Fort Myers Plant and the
Orange River Substation, on the west by the Gulf of Mexico and on the east by the
county lines of Collier and Lee as shown in Attachment la and further outlined in
Attachment 1b (the “Project Service Area™), which includes Lee County Electric Coop’s

(LCEC) load in this area. The Project Service Area has become a major load center, with




FPL serving approximately 357,700 customers (an approximate population of 594,900)
as of January 2003. The load in this area is projected to continue to grow at an average
rate of approximately 11,300 customers' or 68 MW per year. The load served by the
existing transmission facilities has grown to a point where additional transmission
capacity is needed to maintain reliable electric service. Without the Project, a single
contingency affecting any one of six 230kV transmission line sections within the
common ROW could cause a loss of service to approximately 104,200 customers or
approximately 173,200 people in the Project Service Area. In addition, without the
Project, overloads ranging from 102% to as high as 124% of the thermal MVA facility
rating, under eleven separate single contingencies, would require the interruption of
service of 7,200 to 41,100 customers (approximately 12,000 to 68,300 people) depending
on the specific outage. Without the Project, FPL would not be in compliance with NERC
Transmission System Standards and the level of reliability in the Project Service Area

would be considerably reduced.

: Populaticn growth is expected to be 18,800 per year.




_Additionally, the placement of the new transmission line within a new and

separate ROW would significantly enhance the restoration of service to customers. -

I 1hccfore, the additional transmission capacity necded

should be constructed over a separate ROW in order to maintain reliable electric service

to an area that can be currently described as an electrical peninsula.

The Project best fulfills the needs and considerations listed above. Additional benefits

achieved by placing the new transmission line in a separate ROW include:

f

The opportunity to integrate new substations east of the existing ROW;

- Increased operational flexibility and reliability in scheduling and performing
maintenance on the transmission facilities serving this area; and

- The ability to meet the future transmission needs in this rapidly developing

area by obtaining additional ROW while practicable routes remain available.

Current projections indicate that substantial new load growth in the Project Service Area
will occur in Collier and Lee Counties to the east of the common ROW. These areas are
already earmarked for development. A new route sited to the east of the existing ROW
would provide an opportunity to more effectively integrate the new substations required

to serve this growing area.




Transmission facilities need to be taken out of service for maintenance without materially
affecting reliability. ~ Maintenance of one transmission line may require that other
transmission lines in a common ROW also be taken out of service to facilitate
maintenance. The establishment of a separate ROW will reduce the reliability risk
associated with having multiple transmission facilities unavailable during maintenance.

This will lower the possibility of customer outages during maintenance.

As previously discussed, this is a rapidly growing area and FPL expects to need an
additional transmission circuit sometime within the next 10 to 15 years. Establishing a
new ROW now could accommodate this additional line when the need materializes.
Although FPL is not seeking a determination of need for a second future transmission
circuit, the future need highlights an additional benefit of securing a geographically
separate ROW while practicable, alternative routes remain available. Locating the
additional future transmission line in the separate ROW would better distribute
transmission capacity and thus further strengthen the reliability of FPL’s service. This is

in the long-term interest of FPL’s customers.

In summary, the Project satisfies the need for a reliable supply of power for FPL’s

existing and new customers in the Project Service Area.




L. Description of FPL Electrical Facilities

Maps of FPL’s transmission network indicating the location of generating plants,
substations, and transmission lines are shown in Attachments la and 1b. There is no

major generating source of power in southwest Florida to the south of the Orange River

substation. |
I e specific part of the clectrical

system in the Project Service Area can best be described as an electrical peninsula, as
shown in Attachment 1b. This situation is of particular concern given the rate of load
growth in the Project Service Area. A list of historic and forecasted FPL peak demand
and energy is provided in the Florida Power & Light Company Ten Year Power Plant
Site Plan 2002-2011, Schedules 7.1 and 7.2, submitted on April 1, 2002 to the Florida
Public Service Commission (the “Commission”), incorporated herein as Attachment 2.
Attachment 3 shows the summer and winter historic peak loads and projected peak loads
for the Project Service Area. As reflected in Attachment 3, FPL’s 2003 winter peak load
forecast for FPL’s West Region is 4,759MW. In fact, on January 24, 2003, FPL’s peak

load in the West Region was 4,781MW.> The corresponding actual winter peak load for

? On that same date, LCEC had an additional load of 834MW in the West Region served
from FPL’s Transmission System.




the Project Service Area, including both FPL and LCEC load, was 2,156MW.3 This

winter peak load has grown at an average rate of 5% per year for the last 11 years.

To address these increasing demands for electricity, FPL has increased the transmission
capability in the Project Service Area over the last several years by adding 360MVars of
capacitors, approximately 50 miles of 230kV and 138kV transmission lines, and
approximately 537MVA of capacity upgrades on existing 230kV and 138KV transmission
lines. Future growth now requires an additional electrical feed into the Project Service
Area. The Project best meets the needs of the Project Service Area, as described more

fully below.

II. The Collier-Orange River #3 Project

The Project consists of a new .transmission line extending from FPL’s Collier to Orange
River Substations. The new line will be constructed with a single pole design on a new
ROW, and will have a design and operating voltage of 230kV. Attachment 4 is a map
showing the existing electrical facilities in the Project Service Area (black), a conceptual
connection for the Project (blue), and other planned facilities indicated (red). The
locations on the map of facilities not yet in service are approximate. In particular, the
line depicting the Project is intended to indicate conceptually the electrical connection
from an engineering and eclectrical planning perspective, without regard to specific

environmental and other considerations that will affect the actual siting of the Project.

* LCEC’s contribution to the total was 229MW.




The actual route for the Project will be based on the results of the Project’s certification
process under the TLSA. Similarly, the future substation sites shown on Attachment 4 are

approximate. The proposed in-service date for the Project is December 2005.

Project cost estimates are presented as a range to reflect cost variances that could result
from different potential routes and conditions of certification that will be determined in
the TLSA process. These estimated costs include land acquisition, environmental
permitting and mitigation, ROW preparation, line construction of singie pole concrete
structures, and a minimum transmission line capacity of 7SO9MVA. The total Project cost
is estimated between $23M and $41M in 2003 dollars, subject to final ROW routing and
conditions of certification. The corresponding range of present value revenue
requirements (“PVRR") is $32M to $57M in 2003 dollars. A summary of the Project’s

major components and their estimated costs follows.

Collier Substation: Add line terminal $0.4M
Orange River Substation: Expand site, add line terminal $1.1M
Estimated Transmission Line Costs $27.8M 10 $39.7M
(Potential Cost Savings) ($0.0 to $6.2M)*
Estimated Total Project Cost $23.1M 10 $41.2M

% A portion of the estimated “Transmission Line Costs” may be offset by the use of an
existing line segment (Transmission service from the Collier substation to the Orangetree
substation, Project in-service date of 11/2003) depending on final route selection for the
Project. The potential cost savings range from $0 (no use of line segment) to $6.2M (full




——

III. Transmission Planning Criteria and Process

Planning for the FPL transmission system cmploys practices and criteria that are
consistent with the NERC Planning Standards contained within the NERC Transmission
Systems Standards under System Adequacy and Security, included as Attachment 5a.
The NERC Transmission System Standards specify transmission system operating
scenarios that should be evaluated, and the levels of system performance that should be
attained. FPL’s transmission planning process is designed to ensure compliance with the
NERC Transmission System Standards, and involves three major steps: (1) the preparation
of system models, (2} the assessment of the transmission system, and (3) the development
and evaluation of alternatives. A more detailed discussion of these steps is provided in

Attachment 5b.

IV. Discussion of Needs and Benefits

The need for the Project is based on the following considerations:

The need to serve the increasing load and customer base in the Project Service Area

in a reliable manner consistent with NERC Transmission System Standards.

e The need for another electrical feed via a separate ROW path into the Naples load
center, thereby reducing the impact of a loss of the existing transmission facilities on
a common ROW,

o The ability to efficiently maintain transmission facilities and minimize the adverse

effect on reliability.

use of line segment).



e The opportunity, subject to final ROW routing siting under the TLSA, to efficiently
and effectively integrate and serve new distribution substations that will be needed to
serve projected load growth in the Project Service Area.

o The ability to provide efficient future long range transmission expansion by acquiring
additional ROW before Lee and Collier Counties are further developed and while

practicable routes remain available.

The Project Service Area has become a major load center. As of January 2003, FPL was
serving approximately 357,700 customers representing a population of approximately
594,900 people. Load in this area is projected to continue to grow at an average annual
rate of approximately 11,300 new customers representing a population increase of
approximately 18,800 people per year.” Presently, the forecasted load for the Project
Service Arca winter peak of 2005/2006 is 2,352MW. The forecasted 2006 summer peak
load for the Project Service Area is 1,980MW (includes FPL and LCEC load). The load
served by the existing transmission facilities in the Project Service Area has grown to a
point where additional transmission facilities are needed to maintain reliable electric
service. The injection of a new 230kV line in a separate ROW fulfills this need in the
most effective manner, taking into account the considerations listed above. A discussion

of the need and the relevant considerations follows.

>An increase of 11,300 customers per year imposes an annual incremental 68MW of load
on the FPL electrical system in the Project Service Area.
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A. The Need to Serve Load Growth in a Reliable Manner Consistent With NERC

Transmission System Standards

The Project is needed to comply with NERC Transmission System Standards for single
contingency events (See Attachment 5a, page 1, Category B) during both winter and
summer peak conditions. The increase in load will cause the capacity of the existing
transmission system out of the Orange River Substation into the Collier Substation to be
exceeded under single contingency conditions which, if not mitigated, would not be in
compliance with NERC Transmission System Standards. As shown beiow,
implementation of the Project will mitigate the overloads and low voltages that otherwise

could occur in the Project Service Area as a result of a single contingency event.

. Transmission Planning Analysis - Results Without The Collier-Orange River #3

Project

Page A.l of Appendix A provides a “load flow diagram key” to assist in interpreting the
load flow maps contained in Appendices A and B. Page A.2 shows a load flow output
diagram of the year 2005/2006 winter peak load condition without any new transmission
facilities. The diagram represents what is called the base case scenario or normal
condition (i.e., no contingencies) for the year 2005/2006 winter peak load. The diagram

shows that all facilities are operating within normal equipment ratings (i.e., no overloads

or low voltages).

Without any new transmission facilities in service by December 20035, the following

contingencies will cause unacceptable low voltages in the Project Service Area (See

10



Attachment 8) that could cause a loss of service for up to approximately 104,200
customers (approximately 173,200 people) as shown in Table I, below:

Jetport-Orange River 230kV line section

Jetport-San Carlos 230kV line section

Orange River-Vanderbilt 230kV line section

Corkscrew-Orange River 230kV line section

Livingston-Orangetree 230kV line section

Corkscrew-Orangetree 230kV line section

In addition, Pages A.3 through A.13 show overloads ranging from 102% to a high of
124% (See Attachment 8) of the thermal MVA facility rating caused by any of the

following contingencies:

Alico autotransformer 230/138kV (Page A.3)
Alico-Metro 138kYV line section (Page A.4)
Colonial-Edison 138kV line section (Page A.5)
Colonial-Ft. Myers 138kV line section (Page A.6)
Ft. Myers-Ft. Myers TP 138kV line section (Page A.7)
Buckingham-Ft. Myers 138kV line section (Page A.R)
Ft. Myers TP-Winkler 138kV line section (Page A.9)
Metro-Winkler 138kV line section (Page A.10)
Collier-Livingston 230kV line section (Page A.11)
Buckingham-Gladiolus 138kV line section (Page A.12)
Alico-San Carlos 230kV line section (Page A.13)

11




In order to mitigate the overloads shown in Pages A.3 through A.13, it would be
necessary to interrupt the service of approximately 7,200 to 41,100 customers
(approximately 12,000 to 68,300 people) depending on the specific outage. Table I
below shows a summary of the total number of customers whose service could be
interrupted for each of the contingencies listed above if no new transmission facilities are

placed in service by December 2005.

12
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TABLEI

Outage of Transmission Facility

Estimated Customers Affected in 2005

Jetport-Orange River 230kV line section 104,200
Jetport-San Carlos 230kV line section 104,200
Orange River-Vanderbilt 230kV line section 104,200
Corkscrew-Orange River 230kV line section 104,200
Livingston-Orangetree 230kV line section 104,200
Corkscrew-Orangetree 230kV line section 104,200
Alico autotransformer 230/138kV 7,200

Alico-Metro 138kV line section 12,600
Colonial-Edison 138kV line section 13,400
Colonial-Ft. Myers 138kV line section 22,300
Ft. Myers-Ft. Myers TP 138kV line section 33,000
Buckingham-Ft. Myers 138kV line section 37,500
Ft. Myers TP-Winkler 138kV line section 33,000
Metro-Winkler 138kV line section 24,800
Collier-Livingstion 230kV line section 20,600
Buckingham-Gladiolus 138kV line section 7.200

Alico-San Carlos 230kV line section 41,100
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Page A.14 shows a load flow output diagram of the year 2006 summer peak load

condition without any new transmission facilities in service. This diagram represents

what is called the base case scenario or normal condition (i.e., no contingencies) for the
year 2006 summer peak load condition with all facilities operating within normal

equipment ratings (i.e., no overloads or low voltages).

As shown on Page A.15, if no new transmission facilities are placed in service by the
summer of 2006, the loss of the Jetport-Orange River 230kV line section (single
contingency event) will cause overloads ranging from 102% to 103% of the thermal
MVA facility rating which is greater than the applicable rating of 100% for some of the
transmission facilities as well as low voltages in the Project Service Area. In order to
mitigate the overloads shown in Page A.15, it would be necessary to interrupt the service

of 2,200 customers.

. Transmission Planning Analysis - Results With The Collier-Orange River #3 Project

The Project provides voltage support and relieves all single contingency thermal
overloads shown in Pages A.3 through A.13 and A.15, as well as the six 230kV
contingencies previously discussed, that would cause severe low voltage problems in the

Project Service Area.

Page A.16 shows a load flow output diagram of the 2005 winter peak condition with the

Project in service. Page A.17 shows a load flow output diagram of the 2006 summer

peak condition with the Project in service. The construction of the Project provides a

14
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separate 230kV path relative to the existing 138kV and 230kV transmission network in
the Project Service Area. The Project unloads the existing parallel transmission network
by providing another ROW path for power to flow from the Orange River Substation to

the Naples load center.

Pages A.18 through A.35 show that with the Project in service, any one of the six 230kV
contingencies that would cause severe low voltage or the loss of any of the facilities
evaluated in Pages A.3 through A.13 and A.15 do not result in the overload or low

voltage conditions of any transmission facilities.

Common ROW Exposure/Diversity of Transmission Facilities

When evaluating the performance of the transmission system, FPL evaluates common
mode outages such as the loss of the transmission facilities on a common ROW and the
effect of such outage on major load centers. This type of evaluation is consistent with
NERC Transmission System Standards for Category D events (See Attachment 5a, page
4). Accordingly, it is necessary to take into consideration the exposure to the potential

outage of the transmission facilities located on the common ROW serving this area.

_ As depicted in Attachment 4, the existing transmission facilities on the

common ROW serve as the main feed of power for the Naples load center.

15



The loss of a common ROW is infrequent; however, it does occur in Florida from time to
time. For example, in August 1998, a plane crash took out of service both 500kV circuits
located on a common ROW north of FPL’s Duval Substation located in Duval County.
In November 1998, another plane crash took out both 115kV circuits on a common ROW
out of FPL’s Volusia Substation located in Volusia County. In February 2001, a fire
occurred in Indian River County south of FPL’s Poinsett Substation located in southeast
Orange County took out both 500kV circuits that reside on a common ROW. Recently,
on February 9, 2003, a Cessna single engine airplane clipped a transmission line in a
common ROW containing five 230kV transmission lines east of FPL’s Andytown
Substation located in Broward County. Even though this event only damaged one of the
transmission lines in this ROW, and the coﬂsequences were not severe, it is illustrative of
the type of events that do occur from time to time and which can cause severe

consequences.

In addition to airplane crashes and fires, events that can cause loss of common ROW
include tornadoes, hurricanes or other natural disasters, and, in the post-September 11"

world, sabotage and terrorism. While such threats exist for the entire FPL transmission

system, the risks for the Project Service Area are particularly acute because of the

potentially serious consequences in the event of such a loss. | NG
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_Moreover, because the Project would continue to be in

service because the Project is on a separate ROW, service unavailability could be rotated

among some of the customers in the Project Service Area.

Thus, constructing the Project on a new ROW greatly reduces the number of customers
that would lose power for an extended period of time in the event of a sustained outage of
the transmission facilities on the common ROW south of Orange River and substantially

enhances the restoration of service to customers.

Other Benefits

Maintenance Flexibility

From time to time, transmission facilities need to be taken out of service for maintenance
without materially affecting reliability. Placement of the Project on a new ROW would
lessen the likelihood of multiple transmission facilities being unavailable during

maintenance periods, and thus mitigating the risks of an impact on reliability.

Facilitate Future Transmission Expansion

Current projections indicate that the majority of the new load growth is expected to occur
to the east of the existing transmission facilities in the common ROW through Collier and
Lee Counties. In order to serve this new load, it will be necessary to site new distribution
substations to the east of the existing transmission lines, in areas already earmarked for

development. In fact, several of these substations have been planned and others are under
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consideration (See Attachment 4), The siting of these new substations in the future is
expected to require that transmission facilities be rerouted and/or constructed to the east
of the existing common ROW in order to serve these substations from the transmission

sys(emn.

Future Load Growth

The composite load for the Project Service Area has grown at an average growth rate of
5% per year for the last 11 years. Evidence of the rapid growth in this area can be seen in
the new residential and commercial development east of Interstate 75, and the existing
development west of Interstate 75 becoming more dense. It is expected that this area will
continue to grow at an average rate of 3% per year for the next nine years (See
Attachment 3). It is expected that this load will continue to grow beyond the year 2012

with a significant majority of this growth occurring east of Interstate 75.

FPL is interested in planning for the future and expects to need an additional transmission
circuit to serve the Project Service Area sometime within the next 10 to 15 years.
Establishing a new ROW now could accommodate this additional line when the need
materializes. Although FPL is not seeking a determination of need for a second future
transmission circuit, the future need highlights an additional benefit of securing a
geographically separate ROW while practicable, alternative routes remain available.
Locating the additional future transmission line in the separate ROW would better
distribute transmission capacity and thus further strengthen the reliability of FPL’s

service. This is in the long-term interest of FPL’s customers.
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C. Summary of Collier-Orange River #3 Project Benefits
As discussed above, the construction of the Project provides the following benefits to the
Project Service Area:

- Mitigates thermal overloads and low voltage conditions in accordance with NERC
Transmission System Standards to provide reliable service to existing and new
customers as the area’s load continues to grow:;

- Increases the reliability of the Project Service Area by providing an alternate
transmission path for power to flow from the Orange River Substation via a
separate ROW to the Naples load center;

- Provides for the ability to efficiently maintain transmission facilities and
minimize the adverse effect on reliability;

- Provides the opportunity, subject to final ROW siting under the TLSA to
efficiently and effectively integrate and serve new distribution substations that
will be needed to serve projected load growth in the Project Service Area; and

- Provides for future long range transmission expansion by acquiring additional
ROW while practicable routes remain available.

In summary, the Project ensures that FPL customers in the Project Service Area will

continue to be served reliably and effectively.

V. _ Discussion of Alternatives

In order to continue to serve the load in the Project Service Area beyond December 2005

in a reliable and effective manner consistent with NERC planning standards, several
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alternatives were investigated.® The factors used to evaluate the performance of the
alternatives included reliability, cost, ROW diversity, feasibility, operational flexibility,
and compatibility with long range plans. Those alternatives are discussed and assessed

below. Further, Attachment 7 includes a matrix comparing each of the alternatives.

Alternative I — Placement of Collier-Orange River 230kV #3 on Existing Common
ROW

Alternative I provides a 230kV parallel path to the existing 138kV and 230kV network
south of the Fort Myers and Orange River Substation, using the remaining capability on
the existing common ROW that contains most of the existing transmission lines into the
Project Service Area. The estimated capital cost of this alternative is projected to be
$17M in 2003 dollars. The corresponding PVRR is $25M in 2003 dollars, Alternative I
unloads the existing parallel network and provides another electrical circuit to the Naples
load center. This alternative provides adequate voltage support and relieves single

contingency thermal overloads.

Page B.1 of Appendix B shows a load flow output diagram of the 2005 winter peak
condition with Alternative I in service under normal conditions. Page B.2 shows a load
flow output diagram of the 2006 summer peak condition with Alternative I in service

under normal conditions. Under normal conditions, with Alternative I in service, all

® Consistent with Rule 25-22.076, several transmission alternatives were considered. In
addition, FPL considered as another option the feasibility of cost-effectively avoiding
additional transmission facilities by siting generation in the Project Service Area. As
discussed in Alternative V, such an option was determined to be economically infeasible.
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facilities are within applicable thermal ratings and acceptable voltages. Further, pages
B.3 through B.20 show that with Alternative I in service, any one of the six 230kV
contingencies identified in Section IV.A.]1 and evaluated in Pages A.3 through A.13 and

A.15 would not result in the overload or low voltage of any other transmission facilities.

However, Alternative 1 has several major drawbacks. First, it does not address the

reliability risks associated with the common ROW issue discussed in Section IV.A.3.

Second, this alternative does not facilitate the expected future expansion of the
transmission system to integrate and serve new distribution substations as the load
increases in the Project Service Area. Finally, Alternative 1 does not provide the
additional benefits discussed in Section IV.B above. For these reasons, Alternative 1 was

rejected.

Alternative II - Orange River-Collier Area S00kV Transmission Line
Alternative 1I introduces a 500kV transmission injection into the Project Service Area,
thus providing needed voltage support and relieving numerous single contingency

thermal overloads. This project would require a new transmission ROW extending from
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a point along the existing Andytown-Orange River 500kV transmission line to a new
substation in the Collier area (approximately 25 to 30 miles). The new substation in the
Collier area would require the installation of 500kV to 230kV transformation equipment,
along with the looping of two of the existing Collier-Orange River 230kV transmission

lines into the new substation.

The estimated capital cost of Alternative II is projected to be $99M in 2003 dollars. The

corresponding PVRR is $138M in 2003 dollars.

The major drawbacks for this alternative are the high cost, the failure to facilitate
expansion of the transmission system to integrate and serve future distribution
substations, and questionable ability to meet the recommended in-service date of
December 2005 due to increased permitting and construction schedules associated with a

500kV line. Therefore, this alternative was rejected.

Alternative III — Alico-Orange River 230kV Transmission Line

Alternative Il introduces an additional 230kV transmission line from FPL’s Orange
River Substation into FPL’s Alico Substation. This alternative does not fully comply
with NERC Transmission System Standards. This alternative provides minimal voltage
support for the Project Service Area and does not relieve single contingency outages in
accordance with the NERC Transmission System Standards. Overloads and low voltages

remain for two contingencies, as shown on Pages B.21 and B.22. Because this alternative
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will not relieve all of the thermal overloads and low voltages due to a single contingency,
customer interruptions may still be necessary until the out-of-service transmission
facilities can be repaired. Also, the voltage support in the Project Service Area would not
be adequate for the more severe 230kV contingencies. For these reasons, this alternative

was rejected.

Alternative IV — Ft. Myers-Collier 138kV Transmission Line

Alternative IV introduces an additional 138kV transmission line from FPL’s Fort Myers
Plant into FPL's Collier Substation. This alternative does not comply with NERC
Transmission System Standards. This alternative provides minimal voltage support and
relieves only some minor single contingency thermal overloads. Alternative IV would
not eliminate the more severe 230kV transmission overloads resulting from a single
contingency and its effectiveness would be limited to only a few contingencies.
Overloads and low voltages would remain for two contingencies, as shown on Pages
B.23 and B.24. Because this alternative will not relieve all of the thermal overloads and
low voltages resulting from a single contingency, customer interruptions may be
necessary until the out-of-service transmission facilities can be repaired. Also, the
voltage support in the Project Service Area would not be adequate for the more severe

230kV contingencies. Therefore, this alternative was rejected.

Alternative V - Siting Generation Near the Naples Load Center

One alternative to mitigate single contingency overloads and low voltages in the Project

Service Area is to site new generation near the Naples load center. Siting of new
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gencration near the Naples load center (e.g., FPL’s Collier Substation) would reduce the
power flow into the area to maintain adequate voltage levels. However, siting new
generation (2 combustion turbines) near the Naples load center was found to be
uneconomic ($101M NPV) relative to the Project. Therefore, this alternative was

rejected.

V1. Adverse Consequences Of Not Constructing the Collier-Orange

River 230 kV Project

The purpose of and need for the Project is to comply with NERC Transmission System
Standards and to reduce the potential for extended service unavailability in the Project
Service Area. The Project will assure that a reliable and diverse supply of power is
maintained for existing and future customers in the Project Service Area. If the Project is
not built or if it is delayed, a less reliable alternative would have to be employed, thereby

jeopardizing reliable service to existing and future customers in the Project Service Area.
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VII. Conclusion

The Project is needed by December 2005 to maintain the reliability of power supply into
the Project Service Area. The other alternatives to address this situation are either too
costly, do not provide for the operation of the facilities within the rated thermal and
voltage limits in the event of a single contingency consistent with NERC Transmission
System Standards, do not provide the advantages and benefits of a separate electrical path
into the area, or otherwise are not viable. The Commission, therefore, should grant FPL’s

Petition for a Determination of Need for the Collier-Orange River #3 Project.

26



VIII. ATTACHMENTS




ATTACHMENT 1a



ATTACHMENT 1b
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M

Year
2002

2003
2004
2005
2006

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

()

QF
MW

877
877
877
867
734

734
734
683
639

] I I
() () {4)
Total Firm Firm
Installed 1/ Capacity Capacity Firm
Capacity Import  Expon
MW MW MW
17,860 2,403 0
19,135 2,474 0
19,135 2,474 0
21,031 1,758 0
21,031 1,757 0
22,138 1,310 0
22,138 1,310 0
23,245 1,310 0
24,352 382 0
25,459 382 0

594

Forecast of Capacity, Demand, and Scheduled

Page | of 2

Schedule 7.1

ATTACHMENT 2

Maintenance At Time Of Summer Peak

(6)

{7

Total Total
Capacity Peak 3/
Available 2/ Demand
MW MW
21,140 19,131
22,486 19,765
22,486 20,226
23,656 20,719
23,6522 21,186
24,182 21,556
24,182 21,870
25,238 22,271
25,373 22,687
26,435 23,108

8

DSM &4/
MW

1,414
1,491
1,570
1,651
1,729

1,807
1,886
1,962
1,987
1,987

(9)

Firm
Summer
Peak
Demand
MW

17,717
18,274
18,656
19,068
19,457

19,749
19,084
20,309
20,700
21,119

(10)

a1

Reserve
Margin Before
Maintenance 5/

MW

3,423
4,212
3,830
4,588
4,065

4,433
4,198
4,929
4,673
5,316

% of Peak

19.3
23.0
20.5
24.1
20.9

224
21.0
24.3
22.6
252

(12)

Scheduled

Maintenance

MW

O o oo

CoOoO00Q

(13)

Reserve
Margin After
Maintenance &/

MW % of Peak
3,423 19.3
4,212 23.0
3,830 20.5
4,588 241
4,065 20.9
4,433 22.4
4,198 21.0
4,929 24.3
4,673 22.6
5,316 252

1/ Capacity additions and changes projected to be in-service by June 1st are considered to be available to meet Summer peak loads which are forecasted

to oceur during August of the year indicated. All values are Summer net MW.
2/ Total Capacity Available=Col.(2} + Cok.(3) - Col.(4) + Col.{5).
3/ These forecasted values reflect the Most Likely forecast without DSM.
4/ The MW shown represent cumulative load management capability plus incremental conservation from 1/99 - on. They are net included in total additional

resources but reduce the peak load upon which Reserve Margin calculations are based.

5/ Margin (%) Before Maintenance = Col.{10}/ Col.(9)

6/ Margin (%) After Maintenance =Col.(13) / Col.(9)

(14)



1)

Year

2001/02
2002/03
2003/04
2004/05
2005/06

2006/07
2007/08
2008/09
2009/10
2010/11

@

3)

)

(6)

Total Fim Firm
Installed 1/ Capacity Capacity Fim
Capability Import  Export QF

MW MW MW MW

17,730 1,910 0 886
20,007 2,634 0 877
20,369 2,673 0 877
20,369 2,623 0 867
22,402 1,860 0 734
22,402 1,860 0 734
23,598 1,317 0 734
23,598 1,317 0 734
24,795 1,317 0 683
25,992 389 4] 595

ATTACHMENT 2
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Schedule 7.2
Forecast of Capacity , Demand, and Scheduled

Maintenance At Time of Winter Peak

(6)

Total
Capacity

0

Total
Peak 3/

Available 2/ Demand

MW

20,526
23,518
23,919
23,859
24,996

24,996
25,649
25,649
26,795
26,976

MW

18,968
19,551
19,976
20,418
20,854

21,204
21,538
21,966
22,366
22,785

(8)

DSM 4/ Demand

MW

1,589
1,643
1,691
1,738
1,786

1,831
1,875
1,918
1,955
1,955

(@)

Firm

Winter

Peak
MW

17,379
17,908
18,285
18,680
19,068

19,373
19,663
20,048
20,411
20,830

(10)

(1)

Reserve
Margin Before
Maintenance 5/

MW

3,147
5,610
5,634
5,179
5,928

5,623
5,986
5,601
6,384
6,146

% of Peak

18.1
31.3
30.8
27.7
311

29.0
304
27.9
31.3
29.5

(12)

Scheduled
Maintenance

MW

o0 00O

o0 oo

} 1
{(13) (14)
Reserve
Margin After
Maintenance 6/
MW % of Peak
3,147 18.1
5,610 31.3
5,634 30.8
5,179 27.7
5,928 311
5,623 29.0
5,986 304
5,601 27.9
6,384 313
6,146 290.5

1/ Capacity additions and changes projected to be in-service by January 1st are considered to be available to meet Winter peak loads which are forecast
to occur during January of the "second” year indicated. Al values are Winter net MW,
2/ Total Capacity Available = Col.{2) + Col.{3) - Col.(4) + Col.(5).

3/ These forecasted values reflect the Most Likely forecast without DSM.

4/ The MW shown represent cumulative load management capability plus incremental conservation. They are not inctuded in total additional resources but
reduce the peak load upon which Reserve Margin calculations are based.

5/ Margin (%) Before Maintenance = Col.{10} / Col.(9)

6/ Margin (%) After Maintenance = Col.(13}/ Col.(9)
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FPL West Region and South of Ft. Myers Loads

Historical and Forecasted Peak Loads (MW)

West Region Area south of Ft. Myers
FPL (FPL + LCEC)
Year Winter Summer Winter Summer
1991 2592 2310 1169 1081
1992 2053 2445 1332 1144
1993 2973 2566 1341 1201
1994 2943 2658 1327 1244
1995 3893 2976 1756 1393
1996 4752 2807 2143 1314
1997 3924 3168 1770 1483
1998 3133 3373 1413 1578
1999 3964 3388 1788 1586
2000 3892 3443 | 1755 1611
2001 3773 3499 1702 1637
2002 4020 3485 1813 1631
2003 4759 3803 2146 1780
2004 4906 3947 2213 1847
2005 5060 4084 2282 1911
2006 5216 4229 2352 1979
2007 5368 4372 2421 2046
2008 5522 4511 2490 2111
2009 5667 4647 2556 2175
2010 5813 4790 2622 2242
2011 5959 4932 2688 2308
2012 6108 5075 2755 2375
Area south of Ft. Myers
Winter Summer
Historical
Growth (11 5.01% 4.62%
years)
[ Forcasted
Growth
(Through 3.15°/D 3.720/0
2012)
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The Transmission Planning Criteria

The NERC Transmission System Standards are divided into categories A, B, C and D. FPL
utilizes these Standards for its planning criteria. Category A addresses normal system
conditions with all facilities in service. Category B addresses system conditions following
the loss of a single facility. Category C addresses system conditions following the loss of
two or more facilities. Finally, Category D addresses system conditions following an

extreme event where multiple facilities are removed from service.

The need for transmission systern upgrades is most frequently based on potential overload
conditions associated with the Category B contingencies (single contingency) listed in Table
1 of this Attachment 5a. Generally, Category C and D multiple contingency analysis is used

to identify potential situations of cascading interruptions and/or instability.

The planned transmission system with its expected loads and transfers must be stable and

within applicable ratings for all Category A, B, and C contingency scenarios.

The effect of Category D contingencies on system stability are also evaluated. The design of
new transmission connections should take into account and minimize, to the extent practical,
the adverse consequences of Category D contingencies. Lower probability Category D
contingencies, when they occur in combination with forecasted demand levels and firm

interchange transactions, must not result in uncontrolled, cascading interruptions. While
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controlled interruption of load and/or opening of transmission circuits may be needed, the
system should be within its emergency limits and capable of rapid restoration after operation

of automatic controls.



Attachment 5a

Page 3 of 4
Table I. NERC Transmission Systems Standards — Normal and Contingency Conditions
Category Contingencies System Limits or Impacts
Elemenis Thermal Vollage System Loss of Demand or Cascadin ¢
Initiating Event(s) and Contingency Element(s) Out of Service Limits Limits Stable Curtailed Firm Transfers Oumgcf
A-No Al Facilities in Service None Applicable Applicable Yes No No
Contingencies Rating " (A/R) | Rating * (A/R)
B - Event resulting Single Line Ground (SL.G) or 3-Phase (3@) Fault, with Normal Clearing: AR AR
in the loss of a 1. Generator Single AR AR Yes No No
single element. 2. Transmission Circuit Single AR AR Yes b No
3. Transformer Single AR AR Yes No No
Loss of an Element without a Faull. Single Yes No b No
No b
Single Pole Block, Normal Cleari f
HMngle role CK, INU A caring : .
4. Single Pole (dc) Line Single AR AR Yes No No
C - Event{s) ith N al Cleard f.
resulting in the loss SLG Fault, wil ; orma L-learing - Multiple AR AR Yes d No
1. Bus Section . Planned/Controlled
of two or more 2. Breaker (failure or internal fault) Multiple AR AR Yes d No
{multiple) elements, ' Planned/Controlled
. . f .
SLG or 3¢) Fault, with Normal Clearing . Manual System Adjustments,
f
followed by another SLG or 3¢ Fault, with Normal Clearing :
3. Category B (B1, B2, B3, or B4) contingency, manual system Multipie AR A/R Yes d No
adjustments, followed by another Category B (BI, B2, B3, or B4) Planned/Conirolled
contingency
Bipolar Block, with Normal Cleari f
1P . ma caring : .
. . Multiple AR AR Yes d No
- Pl )]
4. Bipolar (dc) Line . Multiple AR AR Yes anned/Contro edd No
Fault (non 3@, with Normal Clearing : Planned/Controlled
5. Any two circuits of a multiple circuit towerline®
SLG Fault, with Delayed Clearin f(stuck break rotection system
. W1 & i 5 “ T protec SY'S
failui‘e?‘u " : o ’ Muliiple AR AR Yes Planmsd/Cc:mlr()IIedCI No
f .Gen rator 8, Transformer Multiple AR AR Yes d No
’ erator. - ' anstorr Planned/Controlled
7. Transmission Circuit 9. Bus Section




Attachment 5a

Page 4 of 4
f R »

D © B Extreme event 3@ Fault, with Deiayed Clearing  (stuck breaker or protection system Evaluate for risks and consequences.
resulting in two or failure):
mere {multiple} 1. Generator 3. Transformer . . .
clements removed or 2. Transmission Circuit 4. Bus Section = May involve substantial loss of customer demand and generation
cascading out of in a widespread area or areas.
service - . *

= Portions or all of the interconnected systems may or may not

f . . .
33 Fault, with Normal Clearing : achieve a new, stable operating point.

5. Breaker (lailure or intemnal fault)

Evaluation of these events may require joint studies with
neighboring systems.
= Document measures or procedures to mitigate the extent and

6. Loss of towerline with three or more circuits effects of such events.

7. Al transission lines on 2 common right-of way Mitigation or elimination of the risks and consequences of these
8. Loss of a substation (one voltage level plus transformers) ) R .. i
9, Loss of a switching station (one voltage levet plus transformers) events shall be at the discretion of the entities responsible for

10, Loss of a all generaling urits at a station the reliability of the interconnected transmission systems.
11. Loss of a large load or major load center

12, Failure of a fully redundant special protection system {or remedial
action scheme) to operate when required

13.  Operation, partial operation, or misoperation of a fully redundant
special protection system (or remedial action scheme) for an event or
condition for which it was not intended to operate

14.  Impact of severe power swings or oscillations from disturbances in
another Regional Council.

a) Applicable rating (A/R) refers to the applicable normal and emergency facility thermal rating or system voltage limit as determined and consistently applied by the system or
facility owner. Applicable ratings may include emergency ratings applicable for short durations as required to permit operating steps necessary to maintain system control. All
ratings must be established consistent with applicable NERC Planning Standards addressing facility ratings.

b) Planned or controlied interruption of electric supply to radial customers or some local network customers, connected to or supplied by the faulted element or by the affected area,
may occur in certain areas without impacting the overall security of the interconnected transmission systems. To prepare for the next contingency, system adjustments are
permitted, including curtailments of contracted fitm (non-recallable reserved) electric power transfers.

¢) Cascading is the uncontrolled successive loss of system elements triggered by an incident at any location. Cascading results in widespread service interruption which cannot be
restrained from sequentially spreading beyond an area predetermined by appropriate studies.

d) Depending on system design and expected system impacts, the controlled interruption of electric supply to customers (load shedding), the planned removal from service of cerlain
generators, and/or the curtailment of coniracted firm (non-recallable reserved) electric power transfers may be necessary to maintain the overall security of the interconnected
transrmission systems.

e} A number of extreme contingencies that are listed under Category D and judged to be critical by the transmission planning entity(ies) will be selected for evaluation. It is not
expected that all possible facility outages under each listed contingency of Category P will be evaluated.

f} Normal clearing is when the protection system operates as designed and the fault is cleared in the time normally expected with proper functioning of the installed
protection systems. Detayed clearing of a fault is due to failure of any protection system component such as a relay, circuit breaker, or current transformer (CT), and not because
of an intentional design delay.

g) System assessments may exclude these events where multiple circuit towers are used over short distances {e.g., station entrance, river crossings) in accordance with Regional
exemption criteria.
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The Transmission Planning Process

Step 1: Preparation of System Models

To prepare system models', regional load profiles must be developed for the current year and for
representative years of the ten-year planning horizon. These profiles incorporate the most recent
substation load information available. Thus, the distribution planning groups in each region are
asked to provide Transmission Planning with historical and projected substation loads and future

distribution substation data.

Once the load profiles have been developed, they are used as input into the load flow, fault analysis
and stability prégrams, which simulate and study the behavior of the transmission system. Other
major inputs into these programs are the generation dispatch and the base transmission system
representation including expected line and equipment performance data. Firm long-term
transmission service obligations are incorporated into the programs. The base transmission system
representation incorporates existing and planned facilities. In addition, appropriate operating
criteria involving voltage limits, generator reactive limits and transformer taps are observed. All

major utilities to which FPL is interconnected are also represented.

! The models used for this analysis are the Florida Reliability Coordinating Council’s year 2002 summer and winter
load flow databank cases modeling expected system conditions in year 2005 and 2006. These models are run on
Power Technologies Incorporated (PTI) load flow programs which are commonly used and accepted in the electric
industry.
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Step 2: Transmission System Assessment

Using the system models developed in Step 1, outage contingencies are simulated using load flow
and stability programs. These outage contingencies consist of two types as discussed in
Attachment 5a: (1) single events with a higher probability of occurrence such as the loss of one
transmission line section or autotransformer and (2) multiple events such as the loss of all
transmission lines in a common transmission ROW. Generally, the latter event has a lower
probability of occurrence but can result in consequences that are more severe. Credible single and
multiple contingencies are analyzed. For each of these contingencies, the response of the power

system is analyzed and violations of the planning criteria are evaluated.

Step 3: Development and Evaluation of Alternatives

This step addresses potential criteria violations. First, switching techniques and other operational
procedures are tested to determine if such actions resolve the problems. If satisfactory operational
procedures cannot be implemented, several alternatives for transmission system reinforcements are
developed. Cost estimates for the viable alternatives are then determined. Subsequently these
alternatives are evalvated (See Attachment 7). During this step, the potential for alternative
ROW’s, to the extent practicable, are assessed. After evaluating the transmission system project

alternatives, the project that best meets the requirements and other considerations is selected.
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Decision-Making Analysis

Alternatives are evaluated taking into consideration pertinent factors or categories such as
reliability (i.e., electrical performance), cost, construction difficulties, compatibility with long
range plans, right-of-way diversity, operational flexibility, and construction feasibility. Each of
these important categories is used to compare the alternatives to each other by assigning specific
weights to each category for each alternative. The sum of the products for each category will

determine which alternative is recommended based on all the pertinent factors.

In this case, the Project met FPL’s needs in the most effective manner and, therefore, is the
alternative that FPL is pursuing. The following Decision Making Worksheet provides the key

elements of the decision-making analysis.
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Decision Making Worksheet

IPruvldo adequats and relinbie servics In an sconomical manner for the Coller area served by the Colller and Orange River

230kV substations.
VS YRAR Freject Ul YRAR Anenintive $T vé YRAR Altarniiive BIT VS YRAR | - AMamistive ¥V
2005 Construct & 230V 2005 [+ uct approximately 37 2005 Build & new 300kV station. 2008 Build new gensration near
Transmission line on a new miles of 230V G wct app! ly 42 miles the Naples load center.
R/'W corridor from Collier to Transmission fine on of S00kV Transmission line on hew Total of 2 CTs: one CT
Orange River substations. existing R'W corridor from 21 mile RW corridor to loop the {180MW) In 2005 and the
{Collier-Orange River #3). Colller to Orange Kiver Andytown-Orange River SO0kV lins second CT (160MW) in
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BEFORE THE
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

DOCKET NO. 030084-EI
In the Matter of

PETITION FOR DETERMINATION OF

NEED FOR COLLIER-ORANGE RIVER

230 kV TRANSMISSION LINE IN
COLLIER, HENDRY, AND LEE COUNTIES,
BY FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY. y

ELECTRONIC VERSIONS OF THIS TRANSCRIPT ARE
A CONVENIENCE COPY ONLY AND ARE NOT
THE OFFICIAL TRANSCRIPT OF THE HEARING,
THE .PDF VERSION INCLUDES PREFILED TESTIMONY.

hTELEPHONIC
DEPOSITION OF: WILLIAM ROBERT SCHONECK
Located in Miami, Florida

TAKEN AT THE
INSTANCE OF: The Staff of the Florida
Public Service Commission

"PLACE: Gerald L. Gunter Building

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Room 362
Tallahassee, Florida
"TIME: Commenced at 10:05 a.m.
Concluded at 3:55 p.m.
”DATE: Friday, April 4, 2003
REPORTED BY: TRICIA DeMARTE, RPR -

LINDA BOLES, RPR
F# Official FPSC Reporters
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KENNETH A. HOFFMAN, ESQUIRE, Rutledge, Ecenia,
Purnell & Hoffman, P.A., P. 0. Box 511, Tallahassee, Florida
32302, appearing on behalf of Florida Power & Light Company,
participating telephonically.

ROBERT SCHEFFEL WRIGHT, ESQUIRE, Landers &
Parsons, P.A., P. 0. Box 271, Tallahassee, Florida 32302,
appearing on behalf of Barron Collier Companies, participating
telephonically.

LAWRENCE D. HARRIS, ESQUIRE, FPSC General
Counsel’s Office, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee,
Florida 32399-0850, appearing on behalf of the Commission
Staff.
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7 STIPULATION

8 IT IS STIPULATED that this deposition was taken

9 Jlpursuant to notice in accordance with the appiicable Florida
10 [jRules of Civil Procedure; that counsel present stipulate that
11 [|the witness is the person he identified himself as; that
12 |lobjections, except as to the form of the question, are reserved
13 Jluntil hearing in this cause; and that reading and signing was

14 |Inot waived.

15 IT IS ALSO STIPULATED that any off-the-record
16 Jjconversations are with the consent of the deponent.

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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PROCEEDINGS
MR. HARRIS: We need to get the witness to execute a
document that certifies he's taking an oath down there. If you
don't have one, I can fax one down to you if you-all give me a

number.

MR. HOFFMAN: I have it.
MR. HARRIS: Okay. And do you-all have somebody
there who can administer an oath?
‘ MR. HOFFMAN: Yes, we do.
| MR. HARRIS: Is this Mr. Schoneck?
“ MR. SCHONECK: Yes, I'm here.
MR. HARRIS: Okay. If you can go ahead and get

sworn.
(Witness sworn.)
MR. HARRIS: Okay. And I would ask that you-all

iexecute that certificate at some point and get it sent back up

—

here to me, so we can attach it to the deposition.

MR. HOFFMAN: Okay.
” MR. HARRIS: Okay. That would be great.

WILLIAM ROBERT SCHONECK

called as a witness telephonically and sworn to tell the truth
,by the notary present with the witness, testified as follows:
F DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HARRIS:

Q My name is Larry Harris, and I'm the attorney who's

’ FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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handling this case for the Florida Public Service Commission.
FA]so present with me is Mike Haff who's the staff member on
"this case. Is Mr. William Schoneck there?

A Yes, I am.

Q Okay. And do you have a business address?

A Yes, 4200 West Flagler, Miami, Florida 33134.

Q Okay. And are you employed by Florida Power & Light

Company?
“ A Yes, I am.

Q In what capacity?

A I'm the manager of transmission planning.

Q Have you filed testimony in Docket Number 030084-EI?

A Yes, I have.

Q Do you have any changes to your testimony that you
filed?

A No, I do not.

Q Okay. Can you hear me okay? I just thought I'd ask
that question.

A Yes, I can hear you fine.
” Q Great, great. We sometimes have problems with these

iphones. I just have a few questions for you on -- they're on a

couple of different areas.
| A Okay.
Q The first area I'd 1ike to ask you about is, did

———————

|

you --

“ FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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MR. HOFFMAN: Larry, excuse me. Before we get into
your questions, could I just note one little typo in
Mr. Schoneck's testimony?

MR. HARRIS: Sure.

MR. HOFFMAN: Okay. Just to make sure we're clean on

that. Page 20, Line 13, we're going to go ahead and change
"denail” to "denial.”

MR. HARRIS: ©Okay. We got it.

MR. HOFFMAN: Okay. Thank you. I just want to make
sure we're clean on that.

MR. HARRIS: It's in caps. too. All right.
BY MR. HARRIS:

Q Okay. Mr. Schoneck, are you aware of staff serving
"some interrogatories on Florida Power & Light Company in this
docket?

A Yes, I am.

Q And do you have any knowledge of the Interrogatories
1 through, I believe, 5 and the responses -- 1 through 6 and
[the responses Florida Power & Light had filed to those?

r A Yes, I do.

Q The first question would refer to the Interrogatory
Number 1. If you have a copy of that there. |

A Yes, I have that.

Q Okay. The answer -- about halfway down, you -- the

Hanswer starts talking about the 2002 transmission planning

H FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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assessment, after considering the growing load in this area and
the magnitude of the problems identified, FPL concluded in the
summer of 2002 that it could no Tonger adequately address the

growing overload and voltage concerns through the

above-mentioned types of solutions and determined it to be
necessary to add a new 230 kV Tine from Orange River.
Do you have any type of -- okay. Let me rephrase
my -- let me ask a question. Is this transmission study,
2002 planning assessment, the first time you-all determined
that you had the need for a new 230 kilovolt Tine?
A That's when we found the concerns that we identified

the need in this particular case for a 230 kV Tine from Orange

River to Collier.

Q Okay. At any time prior to that planning assessment,
l|did FPL have any idea they were going to need an additional
Tine from the Orange River to Collier substations?

A I think that, you know, looking back that because of
the load growth in this area -- it is the most rapid growing
ﬂarea in our service territory -- that we knew that in the

future that we would have to make some improvements, but we had

lInot identified specifically this particular fix at this time.
Q Okay. Do you happen to know what the Toad growth is
Ffor that particular area? |

F A Are you asking forecasted or what it has been over

the last ten years, say? Because I think --

F FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

H
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Q Both, the historical and then the forecasted.

A Yes, I have that. And that's on --

MR. HOFFMAN: Excuse me, Larry. While Mr. Schoneck
is finding that information, I just want to note for the record
that Renee Deaton (phonetic) with FPL is alsoc in the room.

MR. HARRIS: Okay. Thank you.

MR. HOFFMAN: You're welcome.

THE WITNESS: Yes. On the Attachment 3 to the
Exhibit A, for this area south of Fort Myers, the historical
growth in this area has been over the last 11 years around
5 percent, and it's forecasted to grow at about 3 percent. And
these are winter numbers. And for the summer, those
corresponding numbers historically were 4.62 and 3.72 percent.
BY MR. HARRIS:

Q Okay. And I believe 1in your direct testimony you
discuss a little bit that FPL conducts transmission planning on
a yearly basis; is that correct?

A Yeah. Each year we update our models based on more
current data, and we basically do an assessment with those

changes in data.

Q As a follow-up to the question I asked you earlier,
"1f you do these plans every year, this transmission planning
every year, and you new that you had a 4.62 percent historical
growth rate, that's for your Attachment Number 3, why did the

——
—

need for the new 1ine not become apparent until your

|

i FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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“transmission planning in 2002?

A We did not -- in prior years we had not looked out at
the winter of 2006 which is in this case, so we probably didn't
see it. We did look at it in the 2002 assessment and that's
where the need arose.

Q How far forward do you generally 1ook in these
transmission planning assessments?

A Okay. We did Took at the summer of 2006 in the 2001
assessment period.

Q So would it be fair to say you look forward by about
five years in your transmission planning assessments?

A We try to Took out -- I think a five-year is when we
Ifee] the data that we have is fairly reasonable. When you get
beyond that, some of the assumptions are highly susceptible to

change, and therefore, a lot of the data that you have, you

know, you wouldn't come up with a very reasonable plan.

Q You said you -- I believe you said just a minute ago

‘you looked at the summer of 2006 during the 2001 assessment?
H A Yes.

Q Okay. Wouldn't the winter of 2005/2006 come before
|the summer of 2006?
A Yeah, but we did not actually look at a snapshot of
|the winter of the 2006. |
Q Okay. So would it be fair to say that as part of

——

“F1or1da Power & Light's transmission planning you select

if

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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different times of the year to Took at going forward?

A We may not -- when we do an assessment, we may not
look at every single year during that horizon. In the 2002
assessment, I believe we did look at all of the years
'03 through '07. However, sometimes what we'll do as part of
the assessment, if there's not a change, a major change in the
system, you know, you're not adding generation, we may skip a
particular year because it's similar to the year before. So we

may not have looked at every single one. But I do have here

rwhat cases we did look at for the 2002 assessment.

Q Is that in a document form?

A No. It was just based on looking back at what years
‘1 looked at for 2002.

Q Could you run through that briefly for me?

A Yes. For the summer, I looked at years '03, '04,
'05, '06, and '07. And for the winter, I looked at '03, '04,
'05, '06, and '07.

Q Was that the winter of 2002/2003 or just 20037 On
your winter you said, I think, '03. Did you mean the winter of
12002/2003 or just, I guess. beginning in January of 2003?
| A Let me try to clarify when I say the -- the winter
starts, 1ike, the 15th of December of the prior year.

Q Okay. Good.

A Okay. So it wou]d be -- that's what we refer to,

1ike, the '05/'06. What we mean is, like, the 15th of December

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Ithrough, Tet's say, the following March of '06, that's more the

——

winter time frame, because you can't have a winter peak during
that period.

Q Okay. So the winter of '03 would begin December 15th
of '02; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Okay. I guess my understanding of your testimony at

this point is that there's some degree of selection process
that somebody makes at Florida Power & Light as to what

particular periods or years or sections of years you're going

"to look at in the future. Is that a fair characterization?
A Yes, it is.

i Q Is there any policy on what portions of years or

years you choose to look at?

A There is no such policy. I think it’s more of an

engineering judgment that our engineers when they're putting

|these cases together that they're looking in the modeling, and
if they see changes in a particular year, they want to capture
[|that.
Q Who makes the decision as to what part of a year to
Ii'Iook at?
| A That would be some of the engineers that work for
"myse]f.
Q Do you have ultimate responsibility for making sure

that the appropriate years and portions of years are Tooked at?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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A I would -- they would review that with me, yes.

Q Who would have the ultimate responsibility for
determining whether the transmission planning assessment
covered the appropriate years or portion of years in the
future?

A I assume I would.

Q Okay. Who do you report to directly?
“ A I report to Mr. Marty Mennes.
~ Would Mr. Mennes have the authority to tell you that
he did not believe you had appropriately covered a future year
or portion of a year?
A Yes, he would.

Q Would he have the authority to ask you to go back and

do a study for a year or a portion of year in the future?
" A Yes, he would.

MR. HARRIS: All right. If I might have a minute,
Ken.

MR. HOFFMAN: Sure.

(Off the record.)
"BY MR. HARRIS:

Q Getting back to the first interrogatory response, the
portion that I quoted to you a Tittle earlier. It's about
two-thirds of the way through the paragraph. The sentence,
P"FPL concluded in the summer of 2002," could you, Mr. Schoneck,

if you have any personal knowledge, give me a little bit of

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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information on how you-all -- what you-all concluded and what
information you used to reach a conclusion?

A Yes. I think that if you looked at -- actually
Ftab]e -- Page 11 of Exhibit A in tables on Page 11 and also

Page 12 and 13 is kind of the summary of what the findings were

on the assessment that we did for the need for the new Tine
from Orange River to Collier.

Q Okay. And so would it be fair to conclude that
documentation for these conclusions would be the load flow
studies?

A Yes. This is a summary format of what is contained

|1n the Toad flow studies and also on -- I guess it's Attachment
8.

“ Q Okay. On Page 13, I see that you have a second --
the first column is "Outage of Transmission Facility," the
second column is "Estimated Customers Affected in 2005." Could
you explain to me how you-all determined the estimate of the

customers affected?

W A Yeah. That -- basically the -- we converted the
number of megawatts into customers, and this is using winter
numbers because it's the winter of '05/'06, and that conversion
factor is 166 customers per megawatt.
Q Okay. So it was a straightforward formula basically?
A Yes.
I Q Okay. In the second staff interrogatory that we

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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llasked, the answer to it provides a table, and it's titled,
"Southwest Florida Area Transmission Projects, Completed
Projects (1/1997 through 12/2002)." And in the first and
second columns -- well, the first column is a list of -- 1is the
title, I guess, of the project. The second column says, "From
(MVA)," and the third column, "To (MVA)." And some of the

entries are left biank. I was wondering if you had or had

access to or could explain why the -- either had or had access
to numbers for those blank entries or could explain to me why
those entries are left blank?

A Yes, I'd be happy to. In the ones -- the ones that
have numbers in are 1line upgrades. We're asking basically for
it to change the rating of the facility, for example, in the
first one from 129 MVA to 287 MVA. Okay? On the first blank,
Mwhich is called the Collier to Alligator 138 kV alternate feed,

we're actually, you know, constructing three miles of a

transmission 1ine for an alternate feed. So we're not asking

for an upgrade of a specific line.

Going down a little bit further, where you see the
Wnext blanks on the MVA, you'll see add 55 MVAR cap bank at
|Co111er. That's to improve the voltage in the Collier area, so
we're adding a capacitor bank. So we're not asking for a line

upgrade.

J The next one down is 90 MVAR cap banks at Calusa.
l

Same basic answer there. We're adding cap banks for voltage

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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support. So I guess in summary -- I can go through each one of
these, but in summary, if it's a cap bank, you're not asking
for a Tine upgrade. And if you're asking for a section of Tline
under the mile section, you wouldn't be asking for a line
upgrade.

Q Okay. Great. So basically for the new lines, the

feeds and things 1like that, you'd be going from zero to

"something under those MVA columns; 1is that correct? It's not
an upgrade. It would be zero for no line, and then whatever
the 1ine was would be what you were going to; right?

A Well, the first column, MVA, would be the existing
rating. For example, the Fort Myers tap to Fort Myers sub 138
kV, we're saying the existing rating of the line is 129, and
lwe're asking it to be upgraded so it can handle 287.

Q Right. But for the third entry, the Collier to
Alligator 138 kV alternate feed, it's blank under the MVA.
Would it be fair to say that the "from” would be zero and the

"to" would be whatever the new rating for that feed was going
to be?

A It would have been whatever was requested for that

three miles of Tine whatever it was built to.
Q So it would be basically the MVA capacity of that new
"three-mile segment of Tine?

A Yes, whatever we had asked for.

Q Do you have access to what those numbers would be?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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A As a matter of fact, it's 166 MVA.

Q For all of those blank "from” and "to" columns that
are new lines, could you provide us as a late-filed exhibit
those numbers, the MVA ranking for those new 1ines?

A We'd be happy to do that.

" Q@  That would be wonderful.
(Late-Filed Deposition Exhibit 1 identified.)
BY MR. HARRIS:

Q And then the next question I was going to ask you is

basically Interrogatory Number 3, and it's the same type of

column for future projects, and I was going to ask you the same

questions you just have gone through. And could I ask you for
the same type of late-filed exhibit for the new 1ine additions
that you have indicated in that section?

l A We'd be happy to do that.

Q And I think there's just one that you have marked,
the Collier to Orange River #3. And that's this project;
correct?
| a v

Q Okay. And so I guess you won't have to give me one

now because it's in your project justification.
| A Yeah. 1 think it's -- if I remember correctily, I
think it's 759 MVA, but I think it's in the petition.
Q It's in your documentation, yes.
H MR. HOFFMAN: So, Larry, we don't need --

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




W 0O ~ o O B W D -

LT A T T T 0 - T T = S o T R T R e T e T o B
M B W N R OO W 0O N Oy 01 2w N =2 o

19
MR. HARRIS: You don't need that, no.
MR. HOFFMAN: Eliminate Late-Filed Exhibit 27
MR. HARRIS: Yes. Well, there will be another one, I
hope.
MR. HOFFMAN: Okay.
BY MR. HARRIS:

Q I wanted to ask you a question about that table,
actually, that's contained in your answer to -- or FPL's answer
to Interrogatory Request Number 3 and that is the Terry
Substation 230 to 138 kV sub/autotx.

A Right.

Q And that is blank all the way through, and I wondered
if you could explain to me what that is?

A Okay. We're building a new Terry Substation, okay?

Q Okay. ,

A And there's a transformer that -- sub/auto is an
autotransformer that we're putting in injections off of the
Alico to Collier line to a new transmission station, and we're
dropping it down from 230 kV -- this is where the
transformation for the auto is -- to 138 kV to a new Terry
Substation for an injection into the 138 kV system.

Q Okay. Great. Thank you. That explains that
question. And to inform you-all, Judy Harlow just stepped in.
She's the assisting staffer on this case.

For Interrogatory Number 4, FPL's response to Staff's

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Interrogatory Number 4, the answer states in part -- I'm
reading a portion of it; it's basically the second and third
lines. Al1l of the transmission projects identified in
Interrogatories Number 2 and Number 3 would still be needed 1in
order to (1) mitigate other overload and voltage concerns that
are not addressed by the proposed Collier-Orange River project.
Could you briefly specifically tell me what those overloads,
voltage concerns are and what you mean by mitigating them?

A Okay. The project is targeted for certain overloads
as we have on Attachment 8, and they specifically address

those. However, there are other projects that we have needed

to serve the load in this area, and those are addressed by

these other projects that we're talking about. And we just

left Question Number 3 which listed the other upgrades and cap
banks that we're adding in this area in order to serve the load
growth that it's not -- it's in more of the local area.

The 230 kV 1ine from Orange River-Collier is kind of
Tike your backbone, and then you've got to further distribute
|the power to the local load centers. And these other projects
are targeted to some of those sections.
F Q So my understanding then would be building the
Collier to Orange River Project doesn’'t eliminate the need for

the projects you've Tisted in the answer to Interrogatory

Number 3: that's correct?

A That is correct.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q And those projects in the Interrogatory Response
Number 3 are to mitigate additional concerns you have either to
overloads or voltages or contingencies; is that correct?

A That 1is correct.

MR. HARRIS: If I might have just a minute.
(Off the record.)
BY MR. HARRIS:

Q Okay. I don't want to ask any follow-ups about that.
FPL's response to interrogatory number -- Staff's Interrogatory
Number 5, in the first paragraph of the response, the number of
101 million net present value is given. And that, I believe,
is the -- basically the cost of a new generation for the Napies
load center; is that correct?

A That 1is correct.

Q Would it be possible to get a Tate-filed exhibit that
gives a table with the cumulative net present value -- or I'm
sorry, the cumulative present value of revenue requirements
that support that calculation, the 101 million net present
value? And that would be in 2003 dollars.

A I have a document -- I did not run these numbers.

Qur generation group actually provided this input, and I have a
correspondence here of exactly -- I guess the process they went
through to come up with this number. I assume that they should
have where this number was derived from, but I don't have that

in my possession. I do have the rationale that they used for
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deriving --

MR. HARRIS: If we could go off the record for a
second.

(Discussion off the record.)

MR. HOFFMAN: Bob, I don't know. I mean, all I can
do is commit to try to see if it's there.

MR. WRIGHT: (Inaudible.)
BY MR. HARRIS:

Q So the answer to my question is, you-all will see if
you can find this information and get it to staff somehow, but
since you, Mr. Schoneck, didn't generate these numbers and
|don't have it, you can't tell me right now that you have any
personal knowledge or can provide this document; is that

correct?

“ A That is correct.

Q  Okay.

MR. HOFFMAN: And just so we're clear, Larry, what I
understand is, staff is requesting a late-filed exhibit in the
form of a table that would show the cumulative present value
revenue requirement calculation in 2003 dollars that supports
the $101 million figure that you previously referenced; is that
correct?

MR. HARRIS: That's correct. And it would be in an
annual entry basis, annual numbers. And just for .-t might

help you. Dr. Sim, who worked on the Martin and Manatee need
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determination, was able to provide us with those kind of
tables, and he'11 know what I'm -- you know, we went over with
him, so he'11 be able to tell you how crazy I am in what I'm
asking for.

MR. HOFFMAN: Okay. Well, I don't need to ask him
about that to know that.

MR. HARRIS: Right. But if you ask him, he'l1l be
able to tell you that I don't speak so well on this, but he'll
be able to show you what kind of a table I'm looking for.

MR. HOFFMAN: Yes. And I just want to make it clear
that I can't confirm today that we have that information --

MR. HARRIS: Right. And if you don't, that's fine.

MR. HOFFMAN: ~-- but I can assure staff that we will
make every effort to find out if the information is available
and develop the calculations that staff is requesting.

MR. HARRIS: That's good enough for me.

MR. HOFFMAN: Okay.

(Late-Filed Deposition Exhibit 2 identified.)

BY MR. HARRIS:

Q And just to go back to what we started with, I had
one final question for you. I think that will probably end up
the questions I had, and that's bas1ca11y -- well, it's going
to be two parts. Mr. Schoneck, are you familiar with the
ten-year site plan process that the Commission does every year?

A I'm familiar that Florida Power & Light has a
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ten-year site plan.

Q Is it your testimony that the -- that Florida Power &
Light did not identify a need for a new line from Orange River
to Collier until the 2002 transmission planning assessment?

A Yes, it is.

Q And that happened -- and would you agree +in general
that that probably happened after the 2002 ten-year site plan
was filed in April of 2002?

A Yes, I would.

MR. HARRIS: Okay. If I might have just a minute.
MR. HOFFMAN: Sure.
(Off the record.)
MR. HARRIS: Okay. That's all the questions I have.
Thank you for your help.
MR. SCHONECK: Thank you.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. WRIGHT:
Q Good morning, Mr. Schoneck.
A Good morning.
We introduced ourselves --
MR. HARRIS: And we can barely hear you, Schef. So
if you could get closer to the phone or whatever.
MR. WRIGHT: Sure. I apologize for that.
BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q I was just saying, good morning, Mr. Schoneck. We

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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STATE OF FLORIDA )

: CERTIFICATE OF REPORTERS
COUNTY OF LEON )

WE, TRICIA DEMARTE, RPR, and LINDA BOLES, RPR, Official
FPSC Commission Reporters, do hereb¥ certify that we were
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deposition at the time and place herein stated.
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pa%es, constitutes a true record of the testimony given by the
witness.
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relative or employee of any of the parties' attorney or counsel
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e action.
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Page 2 of 2

Southwest Florida Area Transmission Projects

Completed Projects
(1/1997 - 12/2002)

From| To In-Service | New | Capacitor| Ampacity Cost
_ (MVA) | (MVA) |Miles Date Lines| Banks Uprades ($2003)’

[Ft. Myers TP-Ft. Myers Sub. 138kV 126 | 287 | - 2/97 X $ 58,901
Alico-Estero 138kV 241 270 - 1297 X

Collier-Alligator 138kV Alternate Feed 0 253 3 12/97 X $ 377,615
Pine Ridge-Solana 138kV 158 | 179 - 12197 X $0°
Alico-Estero 138kV 270 | 305 | - 2/99 X $0° |
Collier-Orange River #2 230kV 0 637 37 12/99 X $ 11842497
One 55 MVAR Cap Bank at Collier NA | NA | NIA 12/99 X $ 647,344
Two 80 MVAR Cap Banks at Calusa N/A N/A | NA 12/89 X $ 1,427,630
Bonita Springs-Callier 138kvV 158 179 - 12/99 X $ 266,116
Alico-Metro 138kV 241 287 - 1100 X $ 106,275
Collier-Orange River #2 230kV 837 759 - 5100 X $ 236,912
One 55 MVAR Cap Bank at Collier N/A N/A | N/A 12/00 X 3 253,144
One 55 MVAR Cap Bank at Alico NA | NA | NA 12/00 X $ 469,262
Alico to Estero 138kV Alternate Feed 9] 357 5 12/00 X $ 1,388,001
Buckingham-Ft. Myers 138kV 241 283 - 8/01 X $0°
Collier-Naples TP 138kV Alt. Feed o 283 3 &/01 X $ 1239556
One 15 MVAR Cap Bank at Imperial N/A N/A | N/A 1/02 X % 282,888
Ft. Myers-Winkler 138kV 287 352 - 12/02 X $ 120,435

{1) Actual Costs trended to 2003% using Handy Whitman Index.
{2) Ampacity upgrades did not require capital expenditures.
N/A - Not Applicable - Capacitor banks provide voltage support.

Southwest Florida Area Transmission Projects
Proposed Future Projects
(1/2003 - 12/2007)

From| To In-Service | New | Capacitor| Ampacity | Estimated Cost

(MVA) | (MVA) [Miles Date Lines]| Banks |Upgrades {$2003)
Naples TP-Solana 138kV 222 251 - 12/03 X $ 26,000
One 15 MVAR Cap Bank at Gladiolus N/A N/A | N/A 6/04 X $ 616,000
Jetport-Orange River 230kV 837 747 - 12/04 X $ 242,000
Ft. Myers-Colonial 138kV 250 316 - 12/04 X $ 2531000
Colonial-Edison 138kV 222 287 - 12/04 X $ 1,334,000
Ft. Myers-Buckingham 138kV 283 333 - 12/04 X $ 572,000
imperial-Estero TP 138kV 241 287 - 12/04 X $ 56,000
Crange River-Vanderbilt 230kV 514 747 - 12/04 X 3 381,000
Bonita Springs - Collier 138k 179 287 - 12/04 X $ 2,463,000
Terry substation 230-138KkV sub/autotx’ * * * 12/04 $ 5,644,000
Alico-lona 138kV 241 287 - 12/05 X $ 21,000
Collier-Orange River #3 230kV ("Project”} 7] 759 | TBD 12/05 X $23M - 41M
One 15 MVAR Cap Bank at Gladiolus N/A N/A | N/A 6/07 X $ 616,000
Naples TP-Solana 138kV 251 287 - 12/07 X $ 1,231,000

{*) New transmission substation with 230/138kV transformation to provide a 230KV injection into the 138kV transmission system.
N/A - Not Applicable - Capacitor banks provide voltage support.
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Differential of the (All FPL Plan) - (All FPL Plan with 2 CTs)

Page 2 of 2

m_ 12 B3] _ [4] {51 _[6] [7] 18] 19 110)
Annupal Total NPV NPV
Discount | Generation | Generation | Generation | Transmission | System Annual Total Cumulative
Factor at Capital | Fixed O&M | Variable O M| Integration Net Fuel Costs | Annual Cost | Total Costs

Year| 0.085 (Millions) | (Millions) (Millions) {Millions) | (Millions) | (Millions) | (Millions) (Millions)

2001 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2002 0.922 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0

2003 0.849 0 4] 0 Q 0 0 [ 0

2004 | 0.783 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2005 0.722 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2006 | 0.665 (17) {4) 0 0 0 2n (14) (14)
2007] 0.613 (16) (5) 0 0 0 21) (13) (27)
2008) 0.565 (34) (9 0 0 0 (43) (24) (51)
20091 0.521 97 60 0 0 (58) 99 52 0

2010] 0.480 (38) ~{9) 0 0 0 - {47) (23) (22)
2011) 0.442 96 61 0 0 {52) 105 47 24

2012 (.408 (43) (1) 0 0 0 {53) (22) 3

2013( 0.376 {42) (11) 0 0 1 (52) (20) a7
20141 0346 {40) (I 0 0 0 {51 (18) (35)
2015{ 0319 (38) (11 0 0 0 {49 {16) (50)
2016] 0.294 109 65 1 0 (54) 121 36 {15)
2017] 0271 {43) {13) 0 0 0 _(56) (15) (30)
2018] 0.250 108 67 0 0 (49) 126 32 2

2019] 0.230 (49) {14) 0 0 1 _(62) {14 (13)
20200 0212 {40 (15) 0 0 1 _(61) (13) (26)
2021 0.196 {45) (15) 0 0 1 _(59) {12} 37
20221 0.180 (43) (15) 0 0 2 {56) (10) {47)
2023 0.166 (41) (16) 1] 0 2 (55) (9) (56)
2024 | 0.153 (39) an 0 0 2 (54) (8) (65)
2025) 0.141 (  (38) {17 0 0 i _(54) (8) (72)
20261 0,130 (36) {18) 0 0 2 (52) (7) {79)
2027| 0.120 (35) {19 0 0 2 (52) (6) (86)
20281 0.111 {33) 19 0 0 2 (50) {6} (91}
2029 0.102 (32) 21D 0 0 2 (51) (5) (96)
2030| 0.094 (30) (2n 0 0 3 (48) (5 {101)
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NAME : PAGE NO.
C. MARTIN MENNES
Direct Examination by Mr. Harris 5
Cross Examination by Mr. Wright 12
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STIPULATION
IT IS STIPULATED that this deposition was

taken pursuant to notice in accordance with the
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10 || applicable Florida Rules of Civil Procedure; that

11 || objections, except as to the form of the question,

12 || are reserved until hearing in this cause:; and that

13 || reading and sjgning was not waived.

14 IT IS ALSO STIPULATED that any off-the-record

15 conversations are with the consent of the deponent.
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PROCEEDINGS

MARTIN C. MENNES
appeared as a witness, and after being duly sworn, was examined
and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HARRIS:
Could you state your name, please.
Yes. My name is C. Martin Mennes.
And with whom are you employed?
I am employed by Florida Power and Light Company.
And your bhsiness address?
4200 West Flagler Street, Miami, Florida, 33134,

And what 1is your current occupation?

o O o O o P O

A My current position at Florida Power and Light is
Vice President of Transmission Operations and Planning.

Q And have you previously filed both direct and
rebuttal testimony in Docket 030084-EI?

A Yes, I have.

Q Do you have any changes or corrections to make to
either your direct or your rebuttal testimony?

A No, I do not.

Q Okay. I just have a few questions for you. Are you
familiar with'tenjyear site plans at all?

A Yes. If you mean the ten-year generation site plan
that is filed at the PSC, yes, I am.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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/ 1 Q  Could you briefly describe your familiarity with that
’ 2 I} process?
3 | A Well, sure. My familiarity is that we do have --
4 Il Florida Power and Light does have a load forecast in that
5 I process. The process atso goes ahead and shows where we have
6 | been, shows where we are going load wise. It will show
7 Il basically what our intent to supply the future growth is. It
8 1| also has in the load forecast the demand load management
9 !l responses that we plan on having with our energy conservation,

10 || and it also has the transmission lines that are identified

11 I associated with the generation being constructed and built.

12 || And in the past Florida Power and Light has also had other

13 || major transmission facilities identified in that plan.

14 Q  Are you responsible for any of the data or

15 || information that goes into the ten-year site plan?

16 A No, I'm not directly responsible for it, although my
17 )| group does furnish the information about the transmission

18 || 1ines. And actually my group does furnish the acfua1 customer
19 i demand response numbers, not the conservation numbers.

20 Q I understand from, I believe, your rebuttal testimony

21 )| that this project, the Orange River to Collier Number 3 project
22 || was not included in any of Florida Power and Light's ten-year
23 || site plans until this year 2003, is thatrcorrect?

24 A That is correct.

25 Q Why wasn't this project included in any previous year

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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site plans?

A It was not included in the previous year site plan
basically because we had not identified it at the time that we
ran or we supplied the data for the ten-year plan.

Q Why wasn't it identified?

A Well, basically what we identify and the way --
probably the easier way to go through that is to go through
what we do in our plan. We look out for X numbers of years
depending on what my technical planners are trying to

accomplish, but we have a regular scheduie that we follow where

we bring in data from past years. Well, the most recent past

year, if you would, for the load, customer growth, we get our
load forecast, and then we run studies on our system to make
sure -- how it responds as the plan generation is being put
into the system and also as the load is growing.

And we select certain periods of time to run these
studies. And when we ran these studies in this past year, of
course, we identified this need for this new transmission line
for the winter of 2005/2006 on the west coast. We had
previously seen quite a bit of growth in the west coast, but we
did not go ahead in any studies before this to come up with the
need for the new line. We came with up other fixes and then we
really ran it this time, got {nformation from the distribution
planners, got information from our people doing the 1oad

forecast. Kind of an awareness item, if you would. Gee, there

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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is a tremendous amount of growth over there, and then this is
when we went ahead and identified that we needed this
transmission Tine.

Q Do you know approximately what the growth is in the
Naples load center?

A Well, it is in Exhibit A in Attachment 3. It is
growing about 68 megawatts a year is what we have been using.
And when we say the load center, I am assuming what is
identified in the south of Orange River.

Q That is correct.

A Okay.

Q Given that amount of growth, do you think it is
unusual that you all didn't -- FPL didn't identify a need for a
new line until this past year?

A No, I don't think it is unusual. I think that what
we did know is that we have been experiencing the growth over
there. We have been putting into place various fixes, various
upgrades, and some of those were given to you all. I think I
am confident when we went ahead and ran our studies and looked
a little bit more of the 2006 summer and what we are really
doing in the 2005/2006 winter that we really identified this
need for this Tine. We have enough lead time to go ahead and
go through all of the proceedings to go ahead and get the
construction and get the 1ine in service for that winter of
2005/2006.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q So would I be correct in understanding you to have
just said that you don't believe there is an issue with the
ten-year site planning not having identified this line until
this year, April of 2003, since that gave you enough Tead time
to be able to construct the line in time for the need for it?

A Yes, what you just said is correct.

Q Okay. Do you have any concerns that being a ten-year
site plan, looking forward ten years, that perhaps these type
of project should be identified any earlier than one or two
years in advance of the need?

A No, I do not. And I think as long as we have got the
appropriate four years or whatever we need, we can get the
Tines constructed. On the other hand, I do have a concern to
the extent that where some generation may be sited may require
quite a bit more extensive upgrades and a greater lead time in
some areas. And as a matter of fact, we have got that type of
information posted on our OASIS system to help the developers,
if you would, Tocate transmission facilities and kind of give
them an idea of where the best place to Tocate transmission
facilities are.

Q Would you agree with me that there are other
entities, either state, or private, or quasi-public entities
that use ten-year site planning to fulfill their
responsibilities?

A I really don't know, quite frankly.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q For example, do you know whether the regional
planning councils use our ten-year site plans in looking for
their growth?

A I really don't.

Q Would you be concerned that while a two or three-year
planning horizon might be sufficient for FPL's purposes of
being able to build a Tine and get it on line when needed,
might not be sufficient for other entities to be able to do
that?

MR. LITCHFIELD: Let me object to the form of the
question or at least ask for clarification. I'm not sure
whether the witness did testify that we use a two or three-year
planning horizon. |

MR. HARRIS: Okay.

THE WITNESS: Yes. We really look out, you know,
again through the summers and even this past year probably
looked out -- and I would imagine we ran a lot of things in the
2006/2007 summer, so our time frame is -- it does give us the
proper lead time.

BY MR. HARRIS:

Q Is it your understanding of ten-year site plans that
projects other than ones where final decisions to proceed have
been made should be included in those ten-year site plans?

A It's hard to answer that. Could you ask it again.

Q In reference to your rebuttal testimony I believe on

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Page 3, you refer to the final decision for this project wasn't
made until the fall of 2002. That is the beginning pages,
Lines 1 and 2, I believe, at the very top. In using the term
final decision, I'm wondering if you believe that only projects
where a final decision has been made should be included in a
ten-year site plan?

A Yes, I think because if we -- again, to me the
ten-year site plan is more of a generation and requirement to
meet the load. When that generation is specified we need to
point out exactly what transmission is going along with it, and
I think it does need to be specific as opposed to something

that may or may not be built, may send the right -- or, excuse

me, may send the wrong signals to various developers. I think
it is important to go ahead and tell people exactly what for
sure we are going to do.

Q So, would my inference of what you just said then --
I want to clarify in my mind.

A Sure.

Q What I heard you just say is basically you feel that
the transmission should follow the generation and that the
ten-year site plan might need to look forward for potential

future generation. Then once that generation 1is sited more or

less firmly, then the generation would follow that. Would that
be correct?
A I think in part. What I meant to say is that the

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




O 00~ Oy U Rk W N

NN NN N R R e
Tl B W N =R O WO 0~ Oy N RN =R o

12

ten-year site plan for me is the future growth. It lists out
the generation. Once the generation is Tisted, it would also
show the associated transmission that is going to be needed for
that generation. And in the past Florida Power and Light has
included kind of as an FYI +item or something along those lines,
other major transmission that we know for sure that we are
going to build. And we have also put that into that particular
document.

Q And so what you know for sure you are going to build
would be projects where the decision has been made to seek
approval for those and go forward with them?

A Yes, that is correct.

Q And you don't believe that it would be appropriate to
include, quote, FYI or heads up type information for projects
that you thought there might be a future need for but didn't
have a firm decision at this point?

A Yes, that is correct.

MR. HARRIS: Let me have just a second. I don't have
any further questions. Thank you.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q Good afternoon, Mr. Mennes. We introduced ourselves
earlier and I have seen you around at the GridFiorida meetings
before. My name is Schef Wright, and I am an attorney

representing Barron Collier Companies in this case. Probably

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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ERRATA SHEET
DO NOT WRITE ON TRANSCRIPT - ENTER CHANGES HERE

IN RE: DOCKET NO. 030084-EI
NAME: C. MARTIN MENNES
DATE: April 7, 2003

PAGE

LINE

CHANGE

Under
depos

_gena]ties of perjury, I declare that I have read my
ition and that it is true and correct subject to any
changes in form or substance entered here.

UATE

C. MARTIN MENNES
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STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF LEON )

CERTIFICATE OF OATH

I, the undersigned authority, certify that C. MARTIN
MENNES personally appeared before me and was duly sworn.

WITNESS my hand and official seal this 7th day of
April, 2003.

[
Notary Public - State of Florida

s Jene Faurot
;‘3" 'ﬁf}- MY COMMSSION # DDUS3610 EXPIRES
k= X5 July 14, 2005

'.?.'p:h BONDED THRU TROY FAIN INSURANCE, INC.
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STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF LEON )

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

I, JANE FAURQT, Official FPSC Commission Reporter, do
hereby certify that I was authorized to and did
stenographically report the foregoing deposition at the time
and place herein stated.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that this transcrigt. consisting of
%K pagﬁs. constitutes a true record of the testimony given by
e witness.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a relative, employee,
attorney or counsel of any of the parties, nor am I a relative
or employee of any of the parties' attorney or counsel
%ﬁnnec%ed with the action, nor an I financially interested in

e action.

DATED THIS 8th day of April, 2003.

Chief, Officel of Hearing Reporter Services
FPSC Diviston of Commission Clerk and
Administrative Services
(850) 413-6732
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Larry Harris, Esq.
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Florida Public Service Commission 4
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Room 370 Ll APR 10 0
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850
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Kenneth A. Hoffman
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cc: R. Wade Litchfield, Esq.
Ms. Renae Deaton

FPL\harris.4101tr



X 002
0471072003 11:41 FAX 308 202 2092 R LA R M OPERATIONS PAGE B2
' 8
1 ERRATA SHEET .
” DO NOT WRITE ON TRANSCRIPT - ENTER CHANGES HERE
IN RE: DOCKET NJ. 030084-E1
3 NAMZ: C. MARTIN MENNES
4 DATIZ: April 7. 2003
PAGE TLTNE "HANGE
5 11 /Y] c ‘ ‘
6| 2122 12 ' ssiin_ 7, ;1e.a§§izan_“ T
7 |4 riq ;s . L ; 2rafzeon
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21 || Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read my
deposition and that it is true and correct sudject to any
22 | changes in form or -substance entered here,
23 || _H-10-03 =y o _
PATE ] '
24
25

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




1)

-

Florida Power & Light Company
Docket No. 030084

Staff's First Set of Interrogatories
Request No. 1

Pagelof1

Q.
Explain why the proposed Collier-Orange River #3 230 kV transmission line (Project) was not
included in FPL's 2002 Ten-Year Site Plan. Include a discussion of when FPL made its initial
and final decision to construct the Project.

A.
The Collier-Orange River #3 230kV transmission line was not included in FPL’s 2002 Ten-Year
Site Plan because the line was not identified as the solution to mitigate certain overloads and
voltage concerns in FPL’s Southwest Florida area until after FPL’s Ten-Year Site Plan was
submitted in April 2002. FPL has been monitoring the southwest area of Florida and has been
trying to address these conditions through the utilization of the existing capability of the
transmission system. Some of the ways FPL accomplishes improved utilization include
switching options, ampacity upgrades, capacitor bank additions, etc. (see FPL's response to
Question No. 2). These types of improvements are normally less costly than adding a major
230kV line and therefore are pursued first. During the 2002 transmission planning assessment,
after considering the growing load in this area and the magnitude of the problems identified, FPL
concluded in the summer of 2002 that it could no longer adequately address the growing
overload and voltage concerns through the above-mentioned types of solutions and determined it
to be necessary to add a new 230kV line from the Orange River Substation to the Collier
Substation to address these concemns (as discussed in section IV part A.1 of Exhibit “A”). FPL
made its final decision to construct the line in the fall of 2002. FPL plans to include the line in
its 2003 Ten-Year Site Plan.



Florida Power & Light Company
Docket No, 030084

Staff’s First Set of Interrogatories
Request No. 2

Pagelof1

Q. Please provide a listing of all transmission projects completed in the Southwest
Florida area within the past five years. For each of these completed projects,
provide the net present value cost in 2003 dollars.

A.
Southwest Florida Area Transmission Projects
Completed Projects
(1/1997 - 12/2002)
From To Th-Sarvice | Neaw |Capaciter | Ampacily Costl
L {MVA) | (MVA) |MI1es Date Lines| Banks |Upgrades ($2003)

T. Myers TP-Fi. Myers Sub. T30kV 4] 287 ik A 1] 06,9l
Alico-Esterp 13BkV 241 270 12/07 X $0°
[CoMer-Alligalor 13BKY AHlernale Feed 3 T27B87 X T 377,678
Fine Ridge-Solana 138kV 158 176 12107 X 307
Alico-Eslero 138V 270 305 2/99 X 507
Collier-Orange Hivar #2 Z30kV 37 12798 X > T1.63Z.397
One 55 MVAR Cap Bank at Cofller 12790 X 3 BAT 33
Two 90 MVAR Cap Banks at Calusa TZT60 X 3 T.327,.630
Bonila Springs-CoOIEr 138KV i5H ki) TZ790 X ¥ 266,176
ATico-Melio T3BKV FES] 287 T X - 108,275
[CoMer-Orange Rivar #2 230KV 637 75D BI00 X 4 738,012
One 55 MVAR Tap Bank af Collier 12700 X S 253,744
One 55 MVAR Cap Bank al Alica 20 A > 469,262
[ATicD 10 EStero 13BRY Alarnale Feed B TZ/00 X ) T,388,0071
Buckingham-FI. Myers 13BkV 241 283 6/01 X $0*
Colier-Naples TP 13B8kV ANl Feed 3 B0 X - § T, 238,555
One TE MVAR Cap Bank al Imperial 02 X 3 282,888
FT. Myeis-Winklar 138KV 287 352 TZI0Z X 3 TZU. 435

(1) Actual Costs trended to 20035 using Handy W hitman Indax,
(2) Ampacity upgrades did not require capital expenditures.



Florida Power & Light Company
Docket No. 030084

Staff’s First Set of Interrogatories
Request No. 3

Pagelofl

Q. Please provide a listing of all transmission projects proposed in the Southwest
Florida area over the next five years. For each of these proposed projects, provide
the net present value cost in 2003 dollars.

A.
Southwest Florida Area Transmission Projects
Proposed Future Projects
(1/2003 - 12/2007)

From To I Th-Service | New | Capaclior | Ampaciy | Estimated Cos

(MVA} | (MVA) |Miles Date Lines| Banks |Upgrades {$2003)
Naples TP-Solana T38kV 242 281 12703 X ® K
One 15 MVAR Cap Bank al Gladiolus [3{17 X ¥ 618,000 |
[Jetport-Urange River 230KV B37 737 12703 X 4 Z4Z.000 |
FT. Myers-Colonial T3BkV 7250 316 12703 X 1 2,537,000 |
Colonial-Edison 138KV 222 287 12104 X | 3 T.333.007 |
IFT. Myers-Buckingham 138KV ik 353 T4 X L] 572,000
Imperial-Estere TP 158KV LKl 287 12704 X ¥ 56,000 |
[Crange River-vanderbil 230kV 514 747 12704 X L] 381,000
Bonita springs - Collier 138KV 179 287 12704 X T 2.463,000 |
Terry substation 230-138kV sub/autotx 12704 3 5,644 000
Alico-Tona 138kV FLE| 287 TZ05 X 3 21,000 |
[Collier-Urange River #3 230KV [ Project) TED 12105 X 23 -3TH |
[One 15 MVAR Cap Bank al Gladiolus BI07 X 3 B18,000
[Naples TP-Solana 138kV 2571 287 12707 X 3 1,237,000




Florida Power & Light Company
Docket No, 030084

Staff's First Set of Interrogatories
Request No. 4

Pagelofl

Q.
Regarding the list of transmission projects identified in Interrogatories #2 and #3 above, list the
completed and proposed projects which would no longer be essential to ensure transmission
system stability if the proposed Collier-Orange River Project were completed and in service.

A.
Even if the proposed Collier-Orange River Project were completed and in service, all of the
transmission projects identified in Interrogatories #2 and #3 would still be needed in order to (1)
mitigate other overloads and voltage concerns that are not addressed by the proposed
Collier-Orange River Project and (2) continue to provide safe and reliable power to the residents
of the growing Project Service Area.




Florida Power & Light Company
Docket No. 030084

Staff’s First Set of Interrogatories
Request No. 5

Pagel of 1

Q.
Page 12 of the Direct Testimony of FPL witness Schoneck contains a discussion of how the
proposed Project will mitigate low voltage conditions in the Southwest Florida area. Discuss
whether options such as new generation in Collier County or a new transmission line between
Collier County and the Florida east coast would mitigate low voltage conditions in the region.
Describe how long the proposed Project, as well as each of these two alternatives, would mitigate
low voltage conditions before another transmission project would be necessary.

A.
An option such as new generation near the Naples load center was considered as Alternative V
that would mitigate single contingency overloads and low voltages in the Project Service Area as
discussed on pages 24 and 25 of Exhibit “A” of the Petition and on page 20 of witness
Schoneck’s direct testimony. Siting of new generation near the Naples load center (e.g., FPL's
Collier Substation) would reduce the amount of power flow into the area necessary to maintain
adequate voltage levels. However, siting new generation (2 combustion turbines) near the
Naples load center was found to be uneconomic ($101M NPV) relative to the Project.

An option to build a new transmission line between Collier County and the Florida east coast was
not considered. A study to determine the specific configuration and the effectiveness of this type
of option has not been conducted. However, even if a new transmission line from the east coast
of Florida would mitigate low voltages and overloads on existing transmission lines, the fact
remains that a major transmission line extending from the east coast of Florida to Collier (90 —
110 miles) would greatly exceed the cost of Alternative II. As discussed in detail on pages 22
and 23 of Exhibit “A” of the Petition, Alternative Il has a cost of $138Million (PVRR).
Therefore, this option would not have been cost effective and was not considered.

The proposed Project and new generation in the Naples load center, based on current planning
assumptions, could be expected to mitigate the low voltage conditions for the next 8 to 10 years
based on the forecasted load growth in the Project Service Area.



Florida Power & Light Company
Docket No. 030084

Staff's First Set of Interregatories
Request No. 6

Page 1 of 1

Q.
Regarding the five listed alternatives to the proposed Project, contained on pages 17-20 of the
Direct Testimony of FPL witness Schoneck, discuss why FPL did not consider the construction
of a new transmission line between Collier County and the Florida east coast. If FPL did
consider such an alternative, provide an estimate of the net present value cost in 2003 dollars.
Also, explain why such an alternative was not discussed in FPL's petition or direct testimony.

A
FPL did not consider the alternative of constructing a new transmission line between Collier
County and the Florida east coast because it would have been too costly as discussed in the
answer to Question No. 5 above.




AFFIDAVIT
State of Florida

County of Dade

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared William Robert Schoneck,
who first being duly sworn, deposes and states:

My name is William Robert Schoneck. I am employed by Florida Power & Light
Company (FPL) as the Manager of Transmission Planning, Power Systems. I am
sponsoring FPL’s responses to Interrogatory Nos. 1, 4, 5 and 6 and co-sponsoring
FPL’s responses to Interrogatory Nos. 2 and 3 to Staff’s 1™ Set of Interrogatories to
Florida Power & Light Company in Docket No. 030084-EI. The interrogatory

responses are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

/doﬁm/lémd_,/

The forgoing affidavit was acknowledged before me this 13™ day of March, 2003 by
William Robert Schoneck, who is personally known to me.

Notary Pubhc I?

State of Florida
Commission or Serial No.
My Commission Expires:

BERTILA ESTOPINALES
% MY COMMISSION # DD 151015

EXPIRES: January 14, 2007
Bonded Th Notary Prbé: Urderwrfiérs




State of Florida

County of Palm Beach

AFFIDAVIT

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared Dean Busch, who first being

duly sworn, deposes and states:

My name is Dean Busch. I am employed by Florida Power & Light Company (FPL)

as Transmission Project Manager. 1 am co-sponsoring FPL's responses to

Interrogatory Nos. 2 and 3 to Staff’s 1% Set of Interrogatories to Florida Power &

Light Company in Docket No. 030084-El. The interrogatory responses are true and

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

V)V

The forgoing affidavit was acknowledged before me this 14™ day of March, 2003 by
Dean Busch, who is personally known to me.

Notary Public
State of Florida

Commission or Serial No. 20/73233
My Commission Expires: /2/z 2 /206






